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1| OVERVIEW

Group snapshot

Revenue

Revenue has increased by
over 82% in the last 3 years
from £390m in 2020 o
£712m in 2022

Energy generation

Our renewable energy
assets produce enough
energy to power over
a million UK homes

Number of employees

We employ over 1,690
people

Carbon offsets

Qur renewable energy sites’
carbon saving Is over 822,600
carpon tonnes this year

Number of loans

Cver the year-we
provided financing to, on
average 182 borrowers
in the UK

Number of sites
We own 220 renewable
energy sites spread
predominantly across
the UK
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Chief Executive's review

Our Group was in a s0 d positicn corming aul of
trne lockdownr response w0 Covid-12, and ou

¥
een some

busress has continued
throughout tre year,

G perform rooust
Ths year nas
unforecasted growth in vawe of ceriain divisons
primariy drven by the increase in energy orces

Fern Tradng timired "the Company” or togetner

with its subsqd anie

trnie Growp’) targsts corsistent
sth for shareholders over the long term, witb a
this s
challerg'rg

tic conditons We have a aiversihed z2rd

"* (O

IOV,
oCus on steacy and oredictab.e growt

par:i Jlarly irmportaT during roore

ate busin% 2 befithing & Group wit~ more thge

egrs of trading hstory a~d ambilion The Grouo
comorizes mars than 300 cormpanies trat Fave
operatec 1IN a range of sectors over manry
generatin dy tong-term growh for our

<

3
sharehclders We coerate 'n essential se
we expect to perform steaedily througk market

volablity

:rom this socure Dase we have eor able to add

rerernantal expansion a~d civersification ir g

rezsures way lrrcugn seekurg out opportunit os in

vide ue
ne with
our existng strateqy Today, our Group corgr ses
en

new adjacent sectors. The

@ Sertors pro

with 2 platform o continue (o expand

@]

ergy, proparty
fipre arnd ~cuzo b

rjr‘g hiea thcare infrastructure
Jid ng divisions, We =ave grown
sence withir our most

ors produc«r“g 4.2% of the K
shore wird

rmcamt ore

anc 1.7% of the UXs on

enargy cutput, and tuld m__] 2

Mecium e erd.og o
construction and armorovsrren

rCLgnout e UK

ice de weared JG% growtk

s, weli gresd of our arget

-

ne extracrdirary Growih

¢ Swis on, wnich has

ergy proe fo

QVEr ine penca,

Imcrease v the va.ue of our en e gy d HIVISIo™ was

SUCpOrted perational perforrance across

all sectors and = aAnT growth in newer

sectors

We remain a supoartive ernployer, with more than
1,690 full-time staf acros

own and

e businessas that we

oparatg, and irgrect employment
orovided for humdreds more pecple through

cortracts that we nave in pie

A reflection on our year
Our zus

delivered congistert reven.e

iess rased L4004 rorn investars this yﬁar,
5 wihile grow ng capits

Gep.oyment, rasuting in 712 revenue

gererated acress the Groun (2021 £425m) arc net
assers of £2.219m {?32’_ £1.888m restateq).

The fnancial staterments for the yr:—?ar shcw an
operatng proft before tax our

expected outcome of a gral accountmg profr Tos
ronust performrance 3 & ar

producas by the group be

dunrg tho year. Almost

COMPTIZEs rere: > energy generatirg assers such

as solar ore s and wind farrs, which orovide

lorig-term reverus strears Trese are mennonaly
giversifed azross 3 range oF TECONOICGIES 10 THIgate
agains: oocr performance n a spe 2AC secior and

contrinlze [owards steaay, pred

arovtn, howeve: ther vaiues can stll be rmpacied

by changes ' pricing ang demand. We ~avc sear

consecubve and matenal noreases in long oom

orwars rafes

energy price “orecasts and erergy f

globely over t1e last 15 e

CCOrCmy reCovers from e

ana seeks a

ally rcreasea the value of tne

Group’s energy sssats

sels Im these sectors have Dean boistared this
wsition of stes in cormnolementary
ONE &S WET AT JSNG OUr expertse to enter
r21al ang imdustrial roction sclar
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Chief Executive’s review

markets ard starting construction or a lerge wind
farrn in Australia At the start of the year we added
nine additional sites ¢ our reserve power o
up to 26 sites in otat (compared i{®
of 2021). These sites have
performed ahead of expectations, generating
E3ITDA of Ed6'r. 2021 firmm) curing the year

livisic
wWrlCH Brings us

ter sites for most

Our syrcessf Il and weli-establshod bioma

dIViSIor ConhNUes to perionm wel anda nas

w

delveres stable returns since acausiton in 201

Trus year, | have been garticuiarly pleased to se

4]

stronig performance at our newest biomass ste n
which was acquired i Apnit
e addits

Lummg tne year we gurchased a Waste-

5 eterton, East An glia
a valuatse 0 the
husiness
to-trergy faciliny currertly under construction in
Ayrshire. The ‘acnty fias b
three years and wil be.capable

185 €00 tonires per annur of nen-recyclacle

been in developrent for

Sf processing over

nousenod, commercial ang nductral waste which
would otherwise De
This wil generate 17 MWe of law carbor eleciricity,
encugh to power 30,000 homes [t wil be the first
Arge-scale, subs
western Sootlan

sent i landhil or expored

idy free waste-to-energy projectin
no and projected completion date is
riearly 2024

Owver recent years, many of our energy assets have
neen under constructon which nas contrbuted to
our prevously reportea accounting lesses, Tnis is
typical of such busitesses during growth chase
even wien cash gererative, because finance Costs
and accounting charges, such as depr
exceeded revenues. Tnis d

ciaion,
dwvision has now reached

our target size and sector split.

Accord ngly this year | am pleased to report an
accounting profit before tax of £E48m agamst our
budgetea small accounting profit. Tous stightly

ed orofit ic due to the maturity of
gher energy prices; result.ng in
energy divisien as well

‘arger than expec
the portfolo and hi
increased revenue from our

as an increase in inflatron (35 explained below),

Our property lending busingss makes uo around
7% ofthe G
term secured loans o experienced pro
This established part of our busimess
well, following a short penod

sroup and corrprises short and mecium
perty
orofessionals
continued to perform
of slow down during Covid-13 when we
rentionally chose to write fewer loans. Gur average
182 loans this yezr to UL &

COMOAATTS

[GAN SO0k wWas

Cur lan
conservative loan o

ding division has always operated at
nelow 7075 In

security if

vaiue wevels
order that it maintains access to vawwable
there 15 a reduction in property val.es

well simce nception 12 years

s strafegy
ras served the Group
ago, and it nas coeraed trough periods of change
Tha Groug s
I

Cautious appreach when assessing new lenaing

several tirres taking z naturally
opportunities in hght of the changing economic
date, the Group has lert £2.2on of
since inception ir 2010, suffering
record

outicok. Ta
oropery loans

only £&m in capital losses. This strong frack

is the result of cur caraful apprcacn ir this sector,
compricing discipined due diigence, conservative
Woan-to-vaue ratios and a- abibity and wi lmqﬁ%‘ to
reduce activity in this sector during times of
aconomic uncertairty. We wili continue o adopt

this approach throughous the coming year.

The nealthcare divis on makes up around 4% of the
Group and is broadly performing well Qur
ratrement villages business, Rangeford Holdings
Limited "Rangeford”} continued to sell aparumants
at three sites, commenced construction of 2 fourth
village in Cherisey, and acquired a fifth location
near Camprdge during the year. Sales at the
Chersey site are exgected to commence in 2024,
while construction at the Cambridge site s
expected to start in 2073 with the first sales

cormmercing in 2025

Cur fibre division was establ shed .n 2019 ang
emains an area of growtn for the Group, now
COMprising of six operatirg businesses Cur

| businesses, Slore, Swish Ribre,

resident.a Jurassic

i

5

u *-uunnuu;m«
crnighi SEA

prithes ey b
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Chief Executive's review

Giganet and Avports Bibre are build ng uitrafast
“fibre to the premuces” Droadband netw
regrens of the U which have been

larger operators

crks ir

cveroored by
Gigane! provides connectivity o
homes ara businesses across the UK usirg CityFiore

and Qpenreach nfrastructure grd Vitrnf s & scftware

cevelopmen: company whic has deveiopsd
prcpr atary software 1o allow internc: Service
P enzbled

tworks includirg Alosints Fibre Vorboss is the

ers 1o seil connecivity over whoiesale

ledicareq enterprise fitre network (o focus
Cn providing conmeiyvity o businesses o London

In the year cur residertal htre Dusinesses

conlrue

a to invest capitagin exparcing thearr
retworks ntre dome Counties, the South grd

Southvwest of Engiaca, and are nsw onooarding

custorrers 1o the r retwar<s, generating recuring

5 far the Group Our stais
net -Jorks are agle to

of-the-art

meat custorner demana ‘or
righer breadboard Jrrmda required as a rasult of
-home ard incres

S ’Tahd services. In Landan,

IMIOTE WOTHL ﬁj ror

vides-ori-

sed usage of
Vorboss has
alzo continues 1o buiid and has insralled over

500km of fgre W-th ac

cmrnment o cffer 150GEp:s

sses N Cental London

our finre dvis,.gr rermans

5

-
for the next 3 & yedrs wo do nct exgect it ta repor:

an accGunt~g oroft

Towards the erd of the year, we acded a new

progerty dev D, with the

Tt [PcColu

of Elvia Homes B o Elvia s ar
estatusned house bulder develsper g rid-rmarket
famiy hormes i Lorgon cormmuter towns ard

e Tis represanis a very smal sart of e

¢ Y
Group. WE DIan tC grow i in & mreasured way over

feetuanens

At ire ety ranrarm s

erteaemattyanas fratrraraadnnan

Inflation and Interest rates

afaton experenced this year
has Ceen rescorsisle or some of tre

Tre higher rate of

outperformance agarst expectanons in the

Compary's share price. BM Treasury forozas: that

high irfiation s Lkely to be preseﬂ.t until 2025, a2

result we exgect to recaive maore reverue for the

dwition, and g

enargy generated wiithn cur endrgy d

Migher value from e g vernmernit sutsidies that

Q

some of our énergy

fram, 1Mcressing

o value of Those s'tes However, a short penod of

h:g'ﬂ mfation such as forecast ha

o the rate at waen the Groug 15 exn

This s because e renawable enargy stes we own
cunted orojecten futore

time they are expected 1o

lernye tee s valle from dise

(‘w

stiflows over the

operate for, wypically 20 years or more f the

g-term mifiation were

; TOrES
srare price should e posiive
would I~crease tre reveriue sach of cur
sites woud expect (o maxe, ir contrast to a

reatively fixed cost base

The expected rize ' nteres; rates s forecast

returr: to nermal after a signiicant penod

d
low rates. T he imrmediate rrpact ¢F nis on our

bus nest o expected 1o be nproadly neutra sinc

our Group s nentonally structured soas not o

exnerience sign ncart valus ercs.on when interest

LS

rates change We conunueé to ake a ¢
PR rgbusn
nsirg interest rates are felt more clig wly ang we

swher

cach withir our fendi

tr

a
]

Sty t0 reduce tnie nunber of wars

e write, or alter the risg profile of cur icans
rrrough reducing loar o value ralos or pausing

ar
(8]
—_
<
bt
S
3
)
D
>
o
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(=]
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>
n
O

.
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ket snowd tha
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Chief Executive's review

Current trading and outlook

Sirce the year end, tne Group has cortimued o
perform steadily frorm ar operatonal persoactve
and in bre with ouwr expectations: albad we nave
seen share price growth ahead of targar due o the

continuag increase i long term energy or!

-

forecasts. Our growth “arges for the Group ove

pusiness that is capatle
credictable growth for shareha

of c‘eliverrg nore

,r-

iy anrounced tlectnicity Gererator Levy
ECU within tne 2023 Finarce Bill, wilt ha
ton the returns generates from our energy

aver the next 5 years This ic fLriher

Ve an

portfclio

discussed n the greup finance review on page 27

Cur properly iending Business continues to

erform stror\gly, in this

ECIOr LInce the

with increased deployment
vear end. We foZus on short terr
17 months)
N outlasx

rtant in the

s

u"\

[nans {r_nur average cdrrent loan term s
adapt to changes
awiftly, we feel particularly irmpo
current economic clmate,

wrlIch enables us o
tnig '3

Parformance 1 our heathcare division continues

tabie, and we contirue (o remain positive

he orporturities to

toces

mmprove performance in

Sirce year end, we have contnued fo buwld ouw our
fibre netwaorks, with construcuor rac<irg n ire
with our expectations We cantinue 1o review
tusiies for bath organic and incrganc
growth supporting our existing rmanagemant teams

in delverirg ths sirategy

I Gecember 2022 we have acquired the rights o
£25m of right tc use mabile
UX, thus mak.ng the first step towards pecoming an

mehile virrual network operator.

acenses from Thres

rezs nas develoned over time
r the years ahead, driven

Cur mix of business

a
furtner

and may evone
oy the overarching impoftérce we place on
raeelng the objectives of lders This
should not be read as sny indication of a wholesale
change in th
reflection of the role ciayed by the strateg

ting shareho.ders’ mterests,

our sharehns

e sectors :n whicm we cperae, but as a

rmandate . protec

"Qur mix of business areas has
developed over time, driven by
the overarching importance
we place on meeting the

objectives of our shareholders.”
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Qur business at a glance

What we do

Fernt Tradirg Limited ("Fern’) 8 the parent company

of nea-ly 320 subudianes tngetner the "Group” Our

Group operates acrcss ve key areas ener

care, lendirg, fbre and hiouse buiding. Dver
ttwelve years we have bull & carei’u!.l\/

o group of operatimg businesses that are
ticned © delver iong-term value and
rewnih for Gur share

hoiners,

1. Energy division
We cererate power from sustaaole source: and
dether dirscly I MCUTNAL

consumers or 0 @arge retworks Many of our

sell the enaergy srodyc

re~ewsh e erergy sitas guaiify far government

incentives, which reoresant an addiz onal scurce of

income. We have alsa utibsed our exgerise m

rerawab.e energy o consiruct fa

o~

Al year end the Group had

orgorg Coerahion

21 s1es unoer construchon.

2. Healthcare division

We provice homes ardg leisure fad’lves o our
agamng poou

provide

operatioral sites in the U<

ation. anag pr vate nosp als wirch

-

Uty healincare services aoros

o

3. Lending division
We terd on a short and medium term, secared
basis w & large nurmber of croperty prefessionals
erable othar

rg cirer resdental and

e fnanang 1o

4. Fibre division
We cwn and oper

ate Phre broadband networks
across varous areas of the UK We tujld the
d n

networ<s anc ect therr ¢ homes ard

(_

)
O
=

e our customers with udrafast

bLsresse;

O
©
~
Q
&

filzre Groadband

5. Home building division

Durng ne yegr we sacoessiuny en

buiid ng sector, acguri—g Bovis Homes which has &
strorg rack record of developing bomes in g
susta rate manes Tne company s g ul-sernce

property devaloper, mearing it provides servicas

from the des gn. te the engnzer ng ard tnen iinal
constructionr  ensure tne delivery of gL.aULy

Worrarshp

Solar, wind,

) Property lending, Retrement Ultrafast fibre . '
Eat;'zgfri?laszys development villages, private broadband across Resndbel:‘;fcljai:jhouse
925 financing hospitals the UK 9

reserve Dower
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=ngth of cur Growp's sirategy s .0 both its pusinesses with comprelensive business plans and
r

icral diversity and the return profie of these Laong Mmanagement eams This erabiles us to
Dusinezzes, Our lending business orovides flexi:hity contnue to diversify cur business without
corngromising on tre guelity of our operations,

Cwver the past three years, we have successfully

and strong returrs over e short term, while our
energy. nealthcare, fibre and home buiding

ertered the Apre broacband sector and we now
OwWn six cornoanies with exciting plans to debver

divisiors offer visiolity and stanility of returms over
the iorger term.

‘ . ultrafast broadband arrnes the LK,
The scae of our buaness i g kay strengtn, cnabing

us o acgdire large-scale establened operations a-
well as the opportunity 1o enter new sectors with

minimal sk o the whole Group by selecung

Healthcare 1%

Sector split’

Wind 22% -,

- Property 27%

Fern's sector
allocation

- Reserve power 2%

~-Sofar 1%

~-Fibre 5%

Solar 20%
> Healthcare 4%

Reserve power 6% - | - Landfil. gas ard momass 9%

Otrier 3%

H B Owning and operating assets 69%
BE Lending 31%

Sector soltis given by value, as reprosented on the compary baiance sheet of Fern Trading Lirnited.
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Our business at a glance

Whers we operate

withon our Group rmake
conttoution o socety. from '
gererating Clean erergy 1o ‘he %\ 3
creation of hormes and the provizion @ !

1ality nealtncare infrastruciure /}_ ;

;
!
i . ;
w .
Soiar sites Wl e ‘
e [ |
. ;
Larafil gas facites S !

2Homast sower stations

OFE @
@
n ®
&,,

)
~

e <, we've been anle "o use our ndust

knowiedge

y

W CONnSTrLChn wing farms n |
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Our business at a glance

Making a difference

Ve are proud to operate a Group that makes a
nositive contnhutinn 0 society acress the UL
generaing rengwaole energy. pravidng quality
readhcare infrastructure and retirerment living anc
astvenng ngh-speed breadoand to underserved

areas of the country

Energy

We curee
375G
a milicr hormes

ntly awn 220 engrgy sit

W a year That's

, producing

ergughn energy 10 power over

Cur combination of tech sotar, wind,
reserve power, siomass ard ardfll gas
s tne U<t

weather

nologies.

complernant each otqcr welt, heiping

mee? itz energy targets rrespective of the

The Fern Comrrunity Fund s a social enterprise run
oy thie Group, which works 1o distribute community
furds generated from cur wind farms This year, tre

Ferr Commurnity Fund has awarged £1 “m to local
commuinty groLps, supported 13 locay university
stuiderits ugh our Student Scholarshig Furd,

and proviced a winter fuel subsidy to 706 resicents

mrs

W0 are iocal to tne (_:(QJD 2 assets,

Healthcare
Cur retrement viliages provide high-quality,
contemporary Lving spaces, with 379
accommaodation urite currently in place, and
schemes mvarious stages of development offerirg
add

over 500 tional accomrrocation units,

A friendly community 1s at the heart of our
retirerment villages, which s why in our
developments we provide ceniral facilties and a

Aub of social activity for cur residents,

Lending

The loans we rrade dunng the year nave helged o
fund the construction of student accormmodation
and much rneeded rezidental properties.

We continue to extend loans ta 24 tax drivers and

fleets to enatle them to use electnc venicles

reducing carbon emissions in Qur cag tal,
Fibre
Theough our Fore divicon we are bulding cut the

the LK. Fo
s are focussed on

cadband networks for

fibre optic broadhand network across
of our management team
building out fitre optic br
idential customers and small busiresses, and a
hfth is puilding a fivre retwark to deliver enterprise

res

connectivity Qur sxth s a software develcoment
company ocerahing in tne fbre sector anag
providing serv.Ces to ouf GroJp Companies

Within tris dwision we Fave plans o create

network providing connectivity to over oneg rmilio”

propertes in tne next three years rrany of which

are in small towns ard vilages that oon't curently

Mave access (o internet conmectivily it for mocearn

ways of working ard comrnunicating,

Not onty are aur fibre businesses bringing
connechvity to underserved comntunities, tney are
also gererating ermployment opporunites for
young individuals via trairing academies and

appranticeship schemes, and are drving diversity in

Telecoms, with ane of our cornpanies naving
launched a number of INitiatives o recruit women
INte e seclor

Home building
Our home buitding dvision utili
ocropor abye tmber frame construchon

mietncds and insta:

s&s a high
fion of sustain

air source heat pumps in a
propertes
helping reduce Carlon emissions.

. leading the way in this sector a~d

s

Sheirtiitesrs
5 o

o5 b

;*% i
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Our strategy in focus

Our businesses
Energy

Through our energy givisior, the Croup owns and

oparates eriergy stes whick supy gas an
alecinoty Nt e retwork, 23 well as construcling
renewable erwergy stes for future zale, Of the 220
ensrgy ses that we own and orerate, 154 provide
ref.ewabte erergy, contrinuting to the Croups
posnzom as one of the arge s of

in the UK Energy sites are I"-/m‘ab

s is attractive

~r
]
—
7
1]
[l
pag
o
o
-
o
[
(
il
i
]
o]
f
—_
i
i
=
o]

otental o delve
predictaole profts ovar < ng e

wer frorm,

wtes generaie po:

suUsta manis 5

cirectly to \arge ndu

;\.
£
ﬁ

rd set erergy oroducen eithe
ral consumers o 1o the

network, Many of our rénewable

aual fy for governmant incaenny

porion

of the gererated energy berefirg from

tare ockad o for a epecifiec perod once

ational and accrediation Nas
tag This ras reduced some of the rmipact
H /1 .(_ff"J term erergy prce forecasls

i the UK do nat quah?y iGr

e =

Cvernrmant INCensives, we are teeng more

3
=2
©
T
L
-
'.j
=
T
0
-
Lo1)

arket for s

e S

Owerirg and o:gefatmg enargy $1es s a core part of
our strategy and Current y regkes uo almost 60% of
e Group’s ~et assels part of Gur Group has

Did you know?

A S P

generated higher relurms tis yeer than expectec
ditiors but crucially -t has the

cotennal 1o provide stal!

diue 10 market oo

retarrs Over the long-
term. Tres combinat on s key to o stratesy to
balance risk and return acrs

actyties 1o generate target returns

55 e ranige of (“rru

for snarenoluers

"Qur energy sites generated over
3,750 GWh of power.”

Due to the fugh-cuality en2rgy Sites we Gwri, we

Mg nstrear barks At compentive rates

our rewurns o wh ch relps us wo aobver tha

TELUrTS QU sharebolders exoect

enewsole enargy bus ness started Ife in

tae solar energy seciar, the Grolp has bult

experise across other adlacent techno zging

includng onshiore wind, promass and lenofil gas,

supported by resarve cower glarts which provide
backup power o the Natong, Gric The Group
ror divers acation waitkin tris

;. since weaker condiions for

erergy wroduction fror or te.chnsicg ofen rezult

v sTOnger produsuo
gains sign.ficant benefit fram its

as our Duaness s spread across

o,
a
i
C
=
=
)
A
Q
3
©
Iyl
iy
o
o
o
3
@
0
@
i
i
5

If laid end to end, our solar
panels would stretch from

London to Mexico City.
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Our strategy in focus

In adoition to our UK
s tes overseas, in junsdictons that we understand

sites, the Group is develop ng

well. These present an attractive coportunity as they
bulld on
eariier stage of renewable development. Currently

cur sectar expert.se In countrnes at an
we operae wind farms in Irelanc and rrance and
so.ar sites in France and Austratia. We nave saveral
wind sites undar constructiior r Poland, France
ard Australia

Dunng tne year we acadirad nine reserve power
plants and one energy from waste sie. Following
construction, we sola twe wina farms i Finlang and
shortly after the ,ff— rend we also sold Dartington

Point, a large solar 2ite1n Australia

Healthcare

Through our heatihcare division, tne Group
ooerates in tre privat
seciors Qur retrement [ving business, Rangeforg,

= redical and retrement uving

owns and operates twao retiremeart viltages in
15 currerily

sives for future operations.

Wiltsnire and Nortr Yorkshire ang
developing three further

Qur privaze rreedical business, One Healtncare owns
and operates two private aospitals in Kent and
Her:fordshire, providing the very best level o care

i rmodern, well equipped nospital fagilines,

Since returning to nermal working patierrs we have
seer an increase in the number of patients paying
for their owrn treaiment as they face long wating
usrs for NHS treatrert Desplie the liftng of

s the UK, Cowid-19

re sector with a

wodesoread resiricons atross

ontinues o affect the acute ¢a

stressed NMHS and increased infecton contral
measurss that rema’n in p.ace,
Lending

Lending continues 1o be 3 core part of our Dus.ness
and nas crovided the Group with 2 profitacle ard
erative sec {lwelve yaars

Thus werestdmu !"erj part of our Groug mairly

or ouer e past

consists of property lending, wnich crovides

ri-ierm finanairg © expenencead professiconal

u\
O

croperty developers, buy-te-let landiords sesking

o
bridging finance; and deveiopment financing,
rnedium terrn finarcing

which provides short arcﬁ

—

o companies

A key benefit of the scale of our Group and of the
Lusness that we nave bult us in this sector 1s cu
apiity to mitigate risk through having a large
numiber of short ane med um term icans soread
across small orojects to individual borrowars We
oroactively manage couriternarty nsks through
due dugence, taking

undertaking carefui borrower

“Lending continues to be a

important part of our

business and has provided
the Group with a profitable
and cash generative sector

over the past twelve years,
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courity over assets rypicaily or &

and malntan rng corservaive 1og

Sr3t charge bas:s
-ro-value rat s
~Crad ang nese
reasures help to roanimece fne mpact of

pprrr\rﬂ’\ar" ISLeS O

furtrer mitigat

cranrdvicua. loan Tis s

d through the vaiue that we lerna 1o
irdividual borrowe
WTICH 1S Curre
loans, with 21

Fibre division
Ciur fibre drisor nciudes five cosrat.onal
comparias building finre netwerks 1 the LK and

anc saitware development cormpa

Trrough our resicient al ~bre bus nes

el
orks for

far have buitt out
fiore infraztructure 'nurcerserved parts of Cavon,

Somerset, Dorsel, Wiltsnire, Ham

Bund'ng new ohysical fibre nety

communies 1 e JK and so

mpsrire,

Weorcestershire ans the HEome Counties. We are
AINING 1o pas
next three years

s OvEr one midion homes over e

Suilding tese arge networ<s invowes Connesurg
large datscantres and telephionre ex “'arwgps 171 the

Busincsses, effectivey

_,
D
S
Q)
&
=
o
s
Iy
D
]
Ty
T)
(D

FWHEes tnal were ad in
ury Jurassic, Swish ang
ganet are veriucaly imegrated, as ey Doth owr
the ficre 'nfrastruciure and also cave the erg

customer retalionshio as the interet service

prowvider or SPT Allooints owns Abre infractruciure

and wit! ancoard sther 'SPs 1o the Allpoints netwark

ocel conneclivity t the erd cusiomer.

Througr Vorooss we are puiding & netwaork

Loraon o SJDDU nes
enterprise ©

custorers Vorboss has instal
nles -n Londor since 2020 and

fau-ched a sinzle 10GEos product o

fFere ophc car

recenty

rmarkel, recognising that ambibous London
busimessas wil quickly requre more thar the 1Ghps
connectivily they've reélied o e date

We have ween ranid arowth in our Tibre divsior
siree 20 18 ang we PAL&J\ this Gy sicr W Ccaniinue
o becorme a arger part of our business over time
Tne Group exbects 1 spend anpronrmaely £lbn of
canital by 2025 1o fLlfi its bulld plans and reach

more COmmunines in need of ultrafast broaatand.

Home building
Oar new home ouild‘mg gusness BElvia s a full

service noucebulde

i

aCalnng ano, deveor ng e

fing the ~orres to

s nclade & mix of copsn

strve to delver

Rign auality asprationa: ~ormes. The Busiress s

growing fast win projected annual tumover of
£250m ang 600 K

with n e next -3 years

cuwes built per year forecasted
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Directors

The experienced Board of Directors for the Fern Group are responsible for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company's
business activities to shareholders. They have a set of complementary
commercial, energy sector-related and strategic skills

Paul Latham

Pzaui iz Chief Executve of Fern and is resgonsible for the day-lo-day rurnirg cf the
business, He is gisc a managing director of Cctopus Invesiments Limred [OF
where he has waorked since 2005 O is a key supplier of rezource and experuse
{0 “erm. Paul's dual rolz ensures trat this relst onship works effectively and in thie
best nterests of Fern's shareholoers, Paul has had vanous genersl managerment

and imtermial consulting roles acress a number of sectors and brings wath him

wealth of ndustry and business expenaence,

W Kelth Willey o0 e Dy v
'y

Keitih iz an associate professor of strategy and enfrepreneurship at Londor
Busiress School He also ho.ds vanous non-executive directorshipz and acv.sory
" growth and more mature companties I hiz role as ron-executive
chairman he 15 resporsble for the effectve operation of the Board, as well
as its governance He onngs 1o the Ferr business -ndependent cecmmercia!
experience gainea frorn ks time 1in academia, private eculty investment,
corswting ard various hands-on spe-atonal roles

Peter Bariow o Tl v e

Peter mas over 30 years experence n inernational inancng of infrastruciure and energy.
As a senior executve for Internationat Power, Peter was responsible for arranging over
SiZ2bn of project and corporae funding, as well as bankirg relatonshups and treasury
activities. He nas spent over 20 years working imtermaonialyy for HSBC, Bank of
Amenca and Nomrura, financing acguisitions and creenfied projects In the energy
and irfrastructure sectors. His combiraton of Board-level financing and energy
EXDENENCE CVer NUMEroLs enerdy sub-sectors, ard his allround xrowteags of
ad the seciers In which Fern operates, adds significant vaiLe (o the operation of
thie Board as well a3 s strategy ff\rﬂ"anf nd decloyment.

T Arthur 0 coen T L
T is a chartered accountant wih more thar 25 years’ internationai experience
a finance cirector of both puslic and private companies. mitislly he worked
for Price Waterhiouse ir Binringham and Chicago More recently he was Chief
Fimancial Officer of Lightsource Renewable Energy Ltd, a giobal leader in tne
funairg. develcpment and ong-term operation of solar phatovoitac projects

Tim bLrings extensive financial and accountancy knowledge to the Board as
well as an understanding of dynamic technoiogy bLsiresses gained from hig

execuiive pos tuons.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Pringipal rishs

Management :denufy

associated wit the C DUL'S DUSINESS OF,eChives ana

roms exter-al sourcas, those

siraiegy Hisks aris
wh:ch are Innérent Cormrmercial raxs in tne marke:,
and from operanona ncks contaired within the

s and proces
5. Overail nsk exposure is

ses employed withn the

m

managed ac
e Group hfough chie dversification of acuvit es,

Cogrdpﬁ :

Risk Mltlgatlons

O T O PR ey} v wemeaitaa

Ene gy Division

Tne principa. r1s4s that the Group are exposad o
escrbed balow, alorg witn the metigating

0 reduce the po

ntial irmpact of
clude cur atsessmer: of wretner
ne likehinood of the nisl has increased, decreaced

or rerained the same,

Change

Market nsi-( o Conuacts are envered nio which fix the maorme
The energy SECION 15 EYRaIentinig cornen of the energy gererased oy Qur so
sigrifcant turbulerce and thera s e Lorng-term gcvmnmcr‘ backed offisks agreements ae
a ns« mat forecast levels cf mcorne sdch as ine Renewanle Duhgation Ceraficatian
are r ot achieved due to cnar ges in scihierme 30% of cur energy rcome was

raTa

wholzcale energy nnices, offi-take
COMITAts 07 GoVement s
Cue o th s wrbuont environment, E
the potential for inc
nterventicr by the regulator = 450

gererated fror

arisk,
Cnanges :n Goverrment policy
gy result A reduced Income

ame yithin the groug due to

o
e
sdditenal levies

Operational risk: o Lroren
Leye 3 of energy produced may diversthication of ech

se iower thar antcipated duc tc » Regular servizing of
sLb-ontmat sislalolbolatt
or perfcrmance 'ssdes with
pquwr\"fw" webich may result m
sigr am Ar pfﬂ e Cowrtl’f‘e

weaTher o

are Jnavalatl

Flnanc:al rlsk
Reveryss (rrr\ gl ;:nefg:.'
gencrahion

from ne ¢

1 Gr 54

Construction risk: o Tre Giout enters b
Consgiruct on of the

onger or g more

artcipatea dae to rescl

sunsidies » We engage witm the g
ctrcty Markets [O-GIM T o con
ced wrih policy makers who ser future r&guhj Iy requIrer erts.

Dilty &f e weathe

=t in good conaion ard

S0 revenLe

vernrnent cmd e Office of Gas ar %
SUE G a0 IndLstry voIce Ircreased
idue to rmarket

s mitigated through
nclogieg f\d wcoshion of mes
ATsels s uncertaken (0 ens.re assens

TS e gk nat

=

o volanle FX
rovarren s

e

EXDOIUrE to ﬂcreas:ﬁg costs



S
g

Market risk:
expected sales from cusiomers
are lower than ant ¢ paterd due o
increased competition o otner
Drovicers

A charnge in policy oy tne
regulators i favour of larger
cperators coula impact our aouty
(o deliver ;,‘anr*ec goeveloprnent,

reducing revenues ard efficiencies
gained from a larger presence in g
pam Mar area,

Constructlon rlsk

Construct: O ine network
takes brger or \'5 mMore Costly
than anticipated due (o resource
avakablity or ncreased cost of
raw materia:s.

Operational risk:

Melwork service s iaterrusied or
relaole leading to potential icss

of customers and reputaticnal

darnage.

bRt :
- S
ot ;
i
3 e pRea i es e RK%,& i

i
fv&nwm::‘:xxu!tge‘ewm Rl ot i

el
B ebatirhic ot SRR
] %‘;gefx!»wu\tw Sl
R corts e iy
i it s it

e ——. S

M;tlgations

Change

. Maﬁagwr@(* regularly reviews the compe
in target build areas 10 ensure p.ans do nat conflict wath
other altermative retwork oparators.

» ManageTent engages proactively with the Office of
Cormmunications and the Gavernmen: to ensure the
benefits of .allero,ocr tors are weil uncerstood and i
interesis are appropnatey represented.

« We are 51 active p r cpamtm'elemmmcuw nodies,

particurariy those representing alternative network
ODErators,
« “he Group has cortractea N.fh a numiber of differert

sucplers o reduce the exposure o any one INdividual
entity Selection ¢f cutsource partners is managed
through a detatled procurement process with long term
vwsib lity of work allowing cartrers to plar inanciat and
ecrle resources accordingly

. ‘Nﬂere sunply cham preblems are exgected for antical
iterz our teams generally have & monihs stock of fbre
duct and other materials on hard, aﬂd JOVaNCce orger
tecknical eguipment with lcmg= ad srnes

« Curnetworks are buil
route optons choula
This, comp
connectivity 1ssues quicsly, mimimises downtime
networks

tin a resilient way with diverse
o 3 fallure cocur in one route,

ned with an ablity todantfy and resoive
of the

e

ekt a.w‘é Seian,

wma@k:R gweu it fea

I
e SiaT
3 1\2:;% sttty &

s ERRiasi
valiednaill
e T

utive landscape

rF 3

i
increased
{due tc more
Ompﬂhff)r( s
tre market]

increased {due
toincreas 19
demand “or
resoUrce n
the sector as
alternative
network
provders scale
Sunld)

Neo change
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Mutugatlons

B TRV ST TRIRARRGRAL Ty T IXYEF b ke R R AR b ST E R

Market risk:

Increasng inflation and rterest
ates leas o a markef wide
affordak lity 1ssue. resuliing n 3
drop in property values across alt
sectors of real estate. This may
moact cur asilily o recover a
loar i full tircugh a refinance
or sale,

Counterparty risk: .
Loans may be rmade 1o unsJaitable
countergaries, impacting cur

ab Lty to recover the lcan baiance

i ful

» Theteams pro—aciﬂvely TaErage Our positon in the
rrarketpiace and are preparad @ enforce where needed i
& loan moves o default
Oourloars are made at conservaiy

R

e oan-to-value [TV

ratios wih a rmaxmum LTV of 70%

cunty,
ssels of the
s o

\Y‘r‘utf‘ eniarcemant

property

{,v' s a et “hdr
frecoyery

> driger, perfarraed Dror w0 v ting
g property of [ardva.uaions and credit

nlgl bJr'u‘Nel 3
sre .

s3ets urdar consfruchan,
“vr’mamts are out in plade 1o enure
le *e 0ror W ret ew r‘g h.rther Grawoowns

- Hea!thcarel}{omenmldmg Divisions

Risk Mmgahons

fo
R

Nea charge

Elalsialstenile
climatel

Change

e dan v B TR C ermeas AR mee % Shitebwees © w Ao N O T R 2o S

Market nsk (Heaithcare and
Hame Building):

Afallin house prices could
moact cur 3ty 1o generate
erpacied revenues from fthe sale
ot agartments In our retrement
w-t"r =5 ard nous Lu\t by £

Gradip enters fixed price Cm:racts whers approonats
b rRCLCE EX0CSLIS LY INTIE3sInG Mater 3l Costs
o Tre Groud ony works wir eputar,‘e Ird partes with 2
strong track record of delverng simila proects

* Planning cornsents uudpve\o'ﬁed wad are oonmised to
ITiEE T SE revenues and recduce tne sk

cf os5es on sae

Construction rlsk(Healthcare « The
and Home Building):
Constructan

5 mMore Costy tr
=

Health and Safety nsk « Tae Crous magrian
{Healthcare): relating tc the nroyvision of ag=tstl

oceduTes

Tre prevenuon ofinury o IrOLgn Londuaiing regular in rsoect ors, and are
avoidabe lose of Ife of cur also cupject W exterral nspections by reculatory Lodies
caterts s of Atmost imoartarce « Tme Grous niac insurance Colic &5 place 1o cover
ardis cnucsl torartanrg a nancal osses due io rredcal ma pract ce clams.
[l a

I -r

Lsernces We rey e IS

¢

ircreazed (due
Coureta

[creloialete At
chrrigte)

e A
<O Charge

fooaeag
T
NG charos
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Mitigations

Market ri
A increase N base rawes may
increase costs on debt fazil ties,
rmpactng the Groug's alblity 1o
service debt as it fails due.

Liquidity risk:
Poor management of casn within
the Group cculd impact th
Group's abiiity to meet obligations
as they fall cue

o

Health and Safety rish:

Tre safety of cur employess
ana nose employed twough
contracts are f paramount

rnportance. Thers s a ris< that
acciaents in the workplaca could
injury or deaths

f'ﬁSul’— I sarous

Cyber Security risk:

An atiack on our IT systeme and
data could fead to desruptior

of our operations and ioss of
customer data. Loss or misuse
of data may result in reputational
damage, regulatory action under
(‘ILPFE ard .Ntf—mt al fines.

Tre strategic report was approved by the Board o

PS Latham
Director
16 December 2022

« Where ficatirg rate debt s in place {wnere rerest varies
N line w.th an underlying benchmar< rate), the Group
enters Mo hedging arrangements to 5x a portion of these Increased
pavrrents throughout the term of the faciuty. Hedgng ldus o rsein
ArANGEMeNTs Are outtined in bote 21 of the financial interest rates)
state*ﬂemtf

« Adetalled ca f.ow forerazt iz prepared and réviewoed
by maragement on g monthly bass, incorporating cash
avadabiliny and cash requwcmemf across the Groug, On at
quarterly bawis this 8 shared witn the Board
» The Group moritcrs bar/ covenarits on an ongoing bass
to ensure continued adnerence o covenants. Where
covenants can't be met. forecasts are updated for tre
tower cash availab.e as a resulr of the restricting,

teget
S
sl

No changs

e The Group has a ‘lex-bie Snance facity which can be
drawn or at short notice to meel . mmed:ata pusiness
needs

» We have deve.oped robust haaltn a
comoliznce with 15048001 across
the weil-Ceing of cur staff

» Feaith and safety traing is provided 1 Our sta'f and
centractors or a regular bas:s.

rid safety poucies in
the Group iC ensure

4

Increased

CCISCT)
Group and

» We employ a \Ah\ef mformatwon Secunity O
wha s responzible for data secarily scros

renorts guartesy o the Board

s :I"e

oy
« The CISO waorks closely with our husinesses tc ensure i
2dequate standards of security and information No change

management are met
= Each of oJr businesses that hold custorner data ha
oW ded md resource for and securnty

ther

of Drectors on 16 Dacember 2022 and signed on i

mignk Dy
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Corporate governance
Seo

pi72 fﬁf} statement

Felel
e Beard consider

at they have adhered 1o the
requiremems of secton 172 of Tne Companes ACt
2006 the "Act”), f-d rave, ' good faith, aced na

way har wouid be modt likely 10 oromote th

success oF the Group for the benefit of its mevibers

a5 e whole (havirg regard (< ali sigkehciders ard
matters Wa-f) of the Act)
N the decsions taxen during the year endea

C Jure 2022

et out 1n section 1721

In the performance of 118 duly 1€ cromaote the

ut
success of the Group, the Board has regard 1o 3
n

numiber of maers, INcluding the <i<ely

Conseauanc

e of any dedisions in the ong . and

views of the Group's key staxkehouwders
o bhu'ld trust and ensure it fully understands the
potertal impacis of the decsions it makes. The

Ecard fu

coe duties o

E:J

"y by delegation to
committees and the coards of suosdiary
underiakings, who operate witmin a corporate

govarnance framewark across the Group

At evary Board meeting a review of Pealth ard
safely across e group. fna cial and operat oral
pericrmarce, as well as legat end reguiaiorny

compliance, s Board alss eview

Lndertaken, Tre
otber areas over the course of the nancial year

reading the Group's ousiness strategy, REy 1iske,
stakenolde ted rratters, dversity a~d irclusivity
e viroNMNeria: Matters, corporate responsbility, ana

Gowernance, compliance and legal matters,

Principal deci s
Wa defne prncpa decisiors taken ty the Boara as

those decis:

O

rs toat ace of & strategic nature a~d

mereanng wind aperations, wh.oo is part o

our remewal e divis on in August 25241 tre

Group acquired a large scale, reac&y o construct

wind site 1o Australa Thig deployment aigns
witr the Grouo's strategy 1o coniruc o
deve.op renewaple energy sies wh.ch prov ds

prediciable, long-ter reverue streams, The
Board considered tre ooportrity anc row it
aligned witm gur oecl ves 1o Maxe a posinve

coninbunon to e comemr Lrity and environarert

newest

ded o exgand ints our N

norres, a full-serv.ce property
develoger, providing senices from the aasign,
tre eng reen—g and then ﬁrat COMLUChon

& delivery of gualty wor<manship.

Diversifyirg the Group's asset tase and enterng
e th s new sector has been weli thaught
sut Witk iong tesm growih in mna. The Board

azsessed the swatedic cpnortun ues within the

15 te micve shead with this
°t

AcguIsTion, rcrws?dermg now

suld i

hin the div s.on anc how

talgnec witn the Croup’s strategic o ectives to
delver long-term vaiue 3d predictable growth

for our sharerclders.

Review.ng arc decioiry to move anced with
irCreasing o omass operaticns which s part of
our renewal.es v s on, In Gorober 2021 the
Group scouired a large s2a e, wasta {o-energy
construcnen ste in Scotland This decloymen:
tg 5 with the Groun's strategy o 2Cntn.we 1o

a
div |U e Groun, G’evetoc renewanis energy

o

ng nowy Tadsred witt gur coec

mMake a 0cs Ve Sorbuton to tne cormmunity

anid environmert
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Corporate governance

+ The ooard decided t change audit firms via a
tender process for the year ended 30 June 2022,
The Group had cnanged <ignificantly since the
orevicus auditors were acpointed ard theefcre

we were unab's to reliably assess the value for

money we receved Three firms underwent
tne tender pracess and Srrst & Youny LLP were
seiecied becausze of the r strong commarcial
eficiert aucit

uncerstanding o our busness,

methodology and value for money.

Business strategy
Cur busin is set out on pages 11 1o 14 of
the Strateg.c Aagement prepares a
detailed Group ouduet whizn s approv-ﬁd f\y he
goard on ar annual basiz and forms the

€58 Sirategy

eport. M

55 for
the Group's resource planning and depioymeﬁt
decisions Ir making decisiors concen ng tne
business plan, the Beard has regara first and
foramost toits strategc focus, But also to other
ma:ters sucn as thie interests of its various
ctakehalders and the long-term impact of itg
actions on tne Group's fuiure and reputation

Shareholders

Snareholder relations ard generating shareholaer
value 15 a xey corsideration when the Board is
malking strategic decisions. 7 he prime miediurm by
which the Group commun’cates with sharenolders
15 through the arnual report and financial
staterments, which aim 1@ provide shareholders with
a full understanding of the Group's activites and I1s
results. This infarmation s puclished on our website

at www.feratrading.com

Employees

The Groupn's employees are fundarnental to the

. The Cirectors fulfil
ther duty 1o employees by entrusting oversight to
sdbsidiary Boards which the Cn:ef Executive of the

overall success of the business

Group also sits on.

The directors of the subsidary undertakngs

mranage the day 1o day decision making,

engagemeant ard cormnmurnications witn employees

and ensure that trea
valued with respect 1o nay, benefit ang conditions.
We fuly realse tha
informed and consLlted

people are d fairly ard are
our eme:oyees wizh (o be

on matters affecting their
work and to be nvowvea in proplem-solving
affecting ther own areas of nterest and

: Tre Group s firmly commitied o a
nunicat on at at l2vels and we
en flow of Informatior “r\d
sently this includes monthiy tearm kriefings
t a local level ard the publication of monthly kay

a
performance irdicators covering output, operating

COSTs, an

d healtin and safety

aried safety of our employvees in the
s for tne Group, given

5. The Diractors review

a conunual ‘ce
peratinnal busines
Healir & Sa ey Reporting at each board meeting to
ensure appropnate paicies and crocedures are in

place to protect tre heaitn ard safety of cur
emptoyees ard cortractors. Wrere there are
potential defciencies or issues, these are followed
up and resolved on a tmely bas s, with the Board
ravirg overs ght of the actions taken

The
of certain operaticnat actvities to external suppliers
Where activibes are outsourced the Board ensures

ul’OUF‘ cutsGurces actvities and management

thar they are managed by reputable suppaers wino
meet ali the relevant irdustry and requlatcry

comrmitrents as well as treating employees fairly
Expected sta
contracts and adherence to these are conurually

moritored by Board tarough their service

ndsrds are documented ir all servica

agreement with Sctopus Investments Lim ed.

Suppliers and customers

The Group acts in a fair manner with all suppliers
ard customers and
business relationships witn the
Ly all iracts beng negonated torough &
transparent tender orocess which includes
on the long-ferm objectives of

seeks to mantain strong
m. This is asrieved
fair andg

j®ela

L

asseisng me imDace
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Corporate governance

tre Group. We review our payiment orocess ng uct ana goverrance cxpected of a busine

times aganst contracis every six Montis © ensure | QJ intertion through our business

sUpphers &' pad promptly and this cformaton far ©ostralegy [@Lm wed on gages 1 to 14)is o operate r
Rde aﬁ/ s avalable on the www.gov.uk Posectors ard work with other busnesses trat share

website,

The Grou es t 3cte farly and In a transparent

manner o al, custorers acsoss all divsions and
services, and actively engages o r
o def,

Metncs ans engages with

ve ary dispus

aults. The Board dose‘y' Moricrs ©

Vihe maragernent team o
understand the 1ss.es if business performance does
Nl ment CUSIOmers’ exps

auUonsg,

5 Investrents Lirit

The Board considgers Octocy

'obeaky

HLsImess pacthier and suopher witr

¥ fOr tne provision: of operatcna.
oversight, financal acrmirisration and company

secretanal services

Community and environment

The nroy

i a~d operat o Of sustairanie
of the Crouo's

Aals. Through its Busingss acivities the

irfrastructure is at the cenre

stratelic go
Group seeks 0 miake 3 cosivve Ccortnbuton to the

CoMmmunTy, environmenrt and ecoromy Our

renewable energy business 1S helping tre UK meet

its remewabie erergy targets, our privale »osgtas
have supported the NHS trrougnour ne Cond-19
gandermic by prowviding reatment for non-Covig-9
NHS paterts that clhervssa could not have beern
caried cut, and cur finre networs will give people
2ls}

ir rurat commrunities access to highi-

Groadpand

Business conduct

- " —~r, ' e
Ag Dirertors our nteni

CIM g O e ave r%sccmz%cr-,

ens

oulr vallias

Business ethics and governance

Tre 2oard i3 rezpons.ble for ensuring thaf the
activities of the Group and 15 vancus tusinesses are

corducted 1 corpl arice with t2 lgw and
applcane governance and ragulaticry regimes, and
ir adrerence wth grevanirg oest pract ce for the

v,

2vant irdustry This includes reviswng internal

[l

comrols, ensur ng that there is an agproonate

o° skilis anid ¢

balancs

e repfef&e*ﬁec‘. on e

Employee, human rights, social and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
and bribery matters

Tre Board's colicy on employee, human rgris,
sccral and community 1ssues, environmeant colicy
and ani-corugion ars QﬁbC’j matters s driscuzsed

ir tne Jrectors Regort on page 29 Tre Bean

actively promaotes a corporale cutiure that s has

ors eth cal values and belhaviolrs
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Group finance review

Beview of financial statemenis

The purpose of this report 15 1o provide additioral

SIraluon on e ﬁr:anoal statements

explanatory ind

1 mMeasurng our performance, the financal

rmeasuras that we use irclude tnose that have been

dernved from our repories resclis in order to
5 ihat dister:

ase are consderad non-GAAS

eliminate factar year on-year

comparisnns

finarcial measLres

A reconcitiaion of these o the Fnancial results can :
be found in note 28 of the notes to the Ainancial
daterments

The financia statements show assets at cost, as such

they do not reflect the future value that we expect 1o

tre share price and may not reflect changes in the
full market value of assels or businesses owned Dy

tre Group.

A rumber of acquistions were mace during the

year Incuding rmine operationai réserve Gower sites,
a waste 1o energy site uncer constricnan, a

construction ready wind farrn n Austrahia and
under constructcon,
S22, we sold

ar site in

severnieern soar roofton sites
Shoetly after the year end, in July

Carlkngton Point, a large 5ol VAustralia

ued expansion, we rad owlt ue
=nd of £E256m which ncluded

casn

derive from thzse businesses To that extent {orefinancing i Darlingion th oricr 5ale
ountng performarce may differ matenally from
(restated) Movement
2022 2021
£'000 E 000 £000
711,830 2#6 526 /
154,916 104 036 90‘880 87%
Pfoﬁf lo» i nefore tay 47,604 (22 663) 70,267 2L0%
Lerurq bo(\k net f DECVISIO 360,901 385 512 24,E>1u 3% 4]
256,415 172,478 82927 AT%
Meet dett 793, 169 599 440 05 f2:: 13%
Vet assets Z 219 448 1 887 842 331 607 18%

Financial performance

Overal, the Group has reported a profit before tax of
E47 & for the year ended 30 June 2022, which is 3
£70 3m imorovemert on the prior year (2021
E22.7mr ‘oss restated) Gverall EBITDA ircreased by
87% 10 £195m {2021 £104m restated;, which is
primarily due to .ncreased ens
as Increased energy prices.

roy generancn as well

Revenue increased by £E287m to £712m (2021:

Earmings before nterest, tax, gepreciation and amorisaton

£425m;) which was precominantly drven by a 84%
increase in revenue within our energy division. This
growtn s two fold, increased enercy genaratcn
from having owned/operateg one of our biomass
olants for the full year and 3 large sowar plant in
Austrasa reaching commissioning, and a significant
INcrease In average energy prices Gver the year due
to the misrnatch batween supply and demand,
exacerpated by the ongoing conflictin Ukrame.
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Revarue growth was Sirongost in our eng gy

ivision but we alsc saw a markeo improvernent i

revenue from cur retrerment villages Tnis part of

our businass has rebounded well fron the

lockdowns required by tne Covid-19 pandernic

response, selling 41 urnits in the year {an moraase of
g

52%1 and anincreasieg in revenue of £7.5rm to
220 4m (2021 £12 7,

Reverue from our lending division saw a drop of
20% o £42m (2021 £57m) due o a sraler average
loers oook cver the year as cash was made available

to grow otfer parts of tre busness,

Operahng

WETE L NE wWith

CUr £x4pe0 1ne ncrease prirariy dooven

by incre
it has expan

Ny COsts i ol abre anvision as
= Refnarcng axtermal deot o

secure Imaraves terms over the past two years nas

cortritbuted to a decrease i inEres; ©
7

w EZZ 6m (2071 £2 m)

of E28m

included ' tne resulis this year s a proht

e on the sale of twe wird faerrs in F rlana
reanzaticm of £1 arm of aeferred concideration
on solar sites sold noprevious

years

Financial position

Cortinsed sharehoider nterest ard investment hag

seen net atiets grow to £2 219m (2 ZLEEEmM

restated) ir the year endec 30 Jung 2022, we

1ssued 220m shis
Lo of ERDAM (2021 B2, 317}

COMmoAaratve year nurmicers ‘nclisge £2393m of

5 (2021 150 for & total

Corsige

corsiderat on relating (O groun resruciurTg

Jjune 2022 were

feorr

Gperating activites decreaseo 1 242m (2021
£342m) which nas been utiisea alongsiae exferna.
long-ierme fria~cing and capital raised by rew share
msuas o grovw the pusiness. We have invested

substantiaily into the aore osroacbana secior over

the past four vears winch will require furtner capita

axgenditure over the wext 3-5 years, INCreasing our

sification across seciors.

Of the caskh held at year end, E211m was held in
<ur energy, home bu lding and hbra subsicianes,
whiere there are 3 numper of corstruction and
rfrastructare projects under way, requirng casn to
be readily avalacle for ctage payments due in the

raoniths after yess end

Goodwill, Gt E541m (2022, £2467-7 rest
contruges 16 be a signifizant number op the
halance sh
busimestes Acquurer: Cusnesses, for example

et and anses o tre acouisbon of some

aple energy sites olen have a market valle

5 of The company’s Net assess, rofle

i reliab'e fulure incoreo srearts, ACCouniing

convert.or requres Inat only identhable assotc are
named on the balance shieer $o the aacourns
canrotrecord the Ralance

e
value which corrprses tre

o tne adamona maret
future profits that s e

Fre expecten 1o delver, The addinonal vaie in

e value of fixed assels tnemsalves (s.ch

lar paneals)is recognised as goodwil

Fut semigly, the market value of the erergy

JEne alian DUsinesses (Or Ndeed any CLeralcond.
bus nesses; reflects the vaue of futurs expecrag
profits. not the cost of smply puying tanginle assels

such as 3Clar pane.s or wind turbines We pay

regrker valae o0 the sies we acadre, wh.ch may

cxceed the vaue cf identfakie assels such as re

ard s gererates goodw!

essertally représents the valoe

fLture ncoime strearns Goodwael recogn seo wll

gradoaly be wrniten of, wp cally over “he 'l

SitE, 35 expecies felurrs are reabced
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Sector performance
Energy P 12021 £196m restated), partially drven by increased
As econcmic activily and globa. demard ncreased site costs where £120m was incurred at odr

througnout the yaar, 5o too did wholesale erargy

=5

iomass sites and £93m a1 our reserve power sifes,

( £
crices, dnven by movernents in cormadity prices, P othe prices for raw materials have increased, on
wrilch resultea in the overallircrease mreverug T average, by §9% cue to an ncrease in the supply
earned across aur energy sites. These marke: costs The combined cost of sales for the reserve
faciors have resulted in an increasa in revent.e of 1opower and b:omass sites increased by Z110m o
84% to £593m (2027 £322m) L OE217m (2021 107m) It should be neted that the
revenue generated by the biomass and reserve

Corresponaingly. EBITDA also ircreased oy 112% to

E266mm (2071 £426m restated) reflecting the power sites increased by £192m dunng the year to

. L E353m (2020 E161m).
significent Increase i energy Tevends Overaltotal 7 20t Biolm)
operaling costs nereased by E230m to £327m :
FY2022 FY2021 FY2022 FY2021
Production Production External External
{(MWh) (MWh) Availability Availability
Biomass 1,050,038 B86,553 84.6% B2 2%
Landall Gas 240,226 250,076 97.9% 97 6%
Feserve Power 403,355 141 086 94.2% G2.0%
Solar 554,858 517112 97.7% 96.0%
Wird 851,214

90.5% G931%

Total 3,099,690 2,682,019
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Healthcare

ealthcare cperat ons contnbu
(2020 E42m) 1o Gr
reflecting the wnpact of increased revenue n

ted £46m

Gup reveruaes for the yewr

Rangeioro Sales of apartrents at the retirement
villages have rebcunaad well from the locxdowns
reguirec ny tne Cowvid-15 pandersic respons
selling 41 units in
021) and Increas
(Z021: £12 7mi

o

S2% rom

the year (@1 increasa of
o te £2G 2m

Lending
FBevenue from lending decreased by £14m 10 £42m
(2021 £57m} primmarily due o a smalier average

loan bock for 2022, wich res

revenue strearr for zhe yaar ihe el loan book

led In a decreased

3V

reduced by 5% to £361m ar the vear erd (2
T

£386m) Thes reducton 1n the 'oan beox 2nables

cash to be avalab!c for orportunities

C ac
sectors withn the Group ncluding asousuons and
a8

Consultor. Th

r

tne !

o
&

ERe-UD Ol

shufted sligntly wnere we have ssued g ugher

15 within the residential

iarger o

rumber of smialler ioar

sector asvw

el as more ans 'nme

Ing divisicn decreased 10 3 1oss

7 £1m o the pror
reflects a provisicon of 225mn
Tloans to reserve Dower SieEs

Fibre

As a reiatvely new duisicn, al, the fbre Dusinesses

- o R | owm ormyeb s b oAl
are o2 und pnase and are starting o an

Cusiomers to e

div s on hac oula passed over 120,007 ~omes
anucinale e bl stage o contoue for 5 further

2-5 years
Almough
anc leads

[,

AS
recog

carnon rcwde future value which s expecied o pe

generated as the 213

13 have beer interrally
gaﬁnv(\:r(\rj This s d Ferent to the share prce where

tre future value expected 1o e genera

s ncluded

Home building

Elvia Hornes was acquirea n May 2022 ard has
trerefore rad crnited impact on the frnanc al
perforrmance durng the year The bus nest s

forecast o debver E72m reveriue and £6 Sm
FBITOA for the ye

is broadly periorming

5
3
D]
€
f—F
\’D
=
s
[
o
=
0f
G
=
”

Funding and lsquu:hty
t ,MJ’ S"dteg)/

ecUre long-termr “nancirg at
rorsarvat ve evels from mairsirearn anks o

enhance reiurns from
[ .

cinpoaaT
CuUsinNesses

our rerewan!e energy
At year end we nad £1.044m of
exiarral project iqarcing with 244im of
headroor avalable

s enasles us W goaure busireszes trat the
e characiens os such

56 nredicialie cosl nase, revenue sreams,
Jac

rrarwet considers 1o nav

Qs

government incenty Frclogy and az

SLC0 Plave Oy Rt Teldms f“a weohout weverage woud

pe insuToent for our shereroiens, 1T 550 ai0ws us
flexn ity in Snancirg our bus nesses ard manag ng

)

as™ fow We beleve thal
sirategy woLld rave a ~egaive mr:pact or busimess
retarn a~g sharebolder va ue gver tre ong term

oorodimrate .y 80% of or nterest pay
and thersefo

:
!
i
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the current inferest rate volatlity. We cantimually

review firanc.ng arrangements to ensura that they
atitve and ootmiced for the needs of the
To ensure Cash 1S rmardages in

ranrer, we malntain g flexible Friance faciity

are Comg
business an agile

which can e drawn dow™ or repaid 1o mee:

mmediate business nesds.

Looking ahead

Tre Groun kas rebourided well frorm the effects of

the Covid-19 pardemic and has outperformed
cectations Whilst th

s one of challenge and uncertainty, we anticipate

current econamic outlook

mirima: impact or our resuiis dug to the
strearrs and cost base, and

predictable revenue

e of our activities, Coupled with the

we have built uo across the busin

essential riatur

diversfhication 255,

we are positoned stongly for these turbulent

times ahead

We continue (o pay particular attenticr € tne twan

chailenges of ris'ng interest rates and surging
inflaticrs — both in terms of lending and portfolis
managament, These rends impact ail areas of the
Groupn's buziness and are lkely to remain for the
foreseeabie future, so we remgin disciolined In our
Investment agproach, continuing 1o monitor th
situaton carefully and taking a prudent approsch to

any current and emerdg: F"’ risKs.

We are positive apoul the continued opportarity
for growtn and contirue to beileve that the
busness is positioned well 1o take advantage of
future growth cpportunities acros
/. lendng and house pulding

ar=as Energy
operations are well establisned in the market and

zontinue to make excellent progress with robust

perforrnances in the new francial year. in line with

our planned strateqy, smce the year end we scld a
proft with
proceeds being redeployed into new opportunities,

large solar farm in Australa for a smail

5 its core business

Ceployment into filre continues to roll out in ine
expectafmms and the Group has now passed
an 150,000 hames by our finre networks
ales ach «ty N our healthcare civision remams

strong, with nearly 40% of anruzl sales &

zlready completed or rescrved across al s

wth
mors

Vgl

sigdget
tes as at
the end of Sepember

rced within the auturnn stetement as part of
3 Finance Bill, the LK Goveramert will

a 45% windfal tevy ("Ele

r'EGL) or whaolesate energy markat

revenues in axcess of E75/MWhn This s expected o

appl‘y o the Group from 1 January 2023 to &L
March 2078 The exact legislation will be pubilshea

in mid-Cecamber 2022, out tased on the iniisl

n performed

ctricity Generator

release an impact analysis b
as at 30 Septemper 2022 We
to be a grop in valuehor of approxrmately £45m
for the sites affected, which contribated o a
2.0p decrease in the share price to 177.0p 1n
Cecember 2022,

as e
trrate e impact

We expect to generate strong aperating reiurns

from our estat ished divisions for the coming years,
N addition to the anticipated outflows for our
“he hezlthcare and

ns are well into ther buld ohase in lne

censtruction phase assets
fibre
with our lorg-term strategy and we anticipate

sSrong returns aver the next flve 10 seven years

divisio

upon matunity,

PS Latham
Director
16 December 2022
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

The directors present their report and the audited consclidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022,

For a2 surnmary of the Cro ite, refar to the

Group france rey e «

The drectors nave not recomrended cayment of

a cividend (2021 ENil

Tre drectors of the Comgany who were 71 ofice
during the year and up o tre date of s:grung the
iinancial statemants were.

P35 Latnarn
KJ Willey
PG Barow

T Arthur fanpoirted 1 July 2522)

efer to note 23 1 the Notos to e Anancia.

. L . [T Y

Refer to the Strategic Regort on page 8

ST L3

Refer to the Strategic Report on page 12,

e

refac to tre sechon 177 staterrent o page 22

The Group's cojectives and policias on Snanc g, nsk
ma~agerent including nformation an the
expoiure of the Group 1o credit risks, vguidity riz<a

sd rrarker rizks gre set oul in niofe 2140 the

friancig statements, The Groug's procipai nsks ara

sel outr

e strategic report on cage 16

csection 424c (11 of the Companies
s have elected 0 disclosc
oo ke the direciars renort

d Mediur-sized

Groups tAccourts and Reporis)

Requlation: 2008 1 tre strateq.c regort

culiure

nial values and behavioors 1z an

s mancer, treating our emplovess,
SHErS ane patiners with court

. G e e
P B . T PN

Applcavons for ermployment ny disanied persors
are gyven ful ard far consizeratior ‘oral
VACANCIET having regard 1o tnair paricu.ar zplildes
and at lties S~oula a perzon beccre disablen

while . the Grouc's emcioymers, every sffortig

maue o els

/rhENT, gvirg

zltermat ve trarming 35 neces
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We fully realise that our emiployees wishi o be
nsulted on matters afecting thier

wolved in problem-selving affeciing

=

informed and co
work and to be r

ther own areas of interest and responsio tty

The Croup s irmly commitied 10 a policy of «

communication at ail levels and we aim fo establsh
a climate which can
flow of nforrzion and
nclades maontnly team brief ngs at a
the puplication cf morthly ey performance

rstantly encourages
idezs Dresently this

ocat \Gje‘ and
ndicators covering cutout, operating costs and
nez.th and sa‘ety.

> has
Investments

Group covenng operationai oversight,
acrniristration, company

The Grous in place an agreament with Oclopus

Lim:itad to provide services to the

secretanat and cormpany
accountng

The Board acoptec a formal envircnmental, social
and corporate "ESGT) polcy on

20 September 2G20. Tne Group recognises tne

governance
nead to conduct its pusiness, N a manner that s

responsiole to the envircorment, wherever possicle.

A3 a low energy user, the Company has elected not
to disclose data on itz energy and carbon Lsage.
Fern Tracing Limitec is the only Company in the
Group that meets the reporting criteria and
therefore no information is provided for the Groun
as a whole

AR

The Grouc's has an Arti-Bribery Policy whic
introguced robust procedures Lo ensure rud
compliance with the Brihery Act 2010 and to ensure
that the highest standards of pro f ssicnal ethical
conduct are mainta:ned.

in accordance with the recommiendasons of The UK
Corporate Goverrance Code, the Board has
considered the arangements in place o encourage
taff of the (
concerns, in confidence, within tnerr argarization

Group or manager of the Groug (o raise
eg in maters of financal
[t is satished that ad

o alow ar independznt

about poss:bie irproonat

reportng or other matters. eqLate

srrangomaonts arc in place
nvestigation, and folow-on action

to tarke place wilhin the organtsation

WNere Necessary.,

Vo are comm tted 1o actling eth caly ang witm
integrity 1 all our pusiness deal ngs and
reaa[;onshps ard to imalemeanting anc enforang
effecuve systems and Cconlrols Lo ensure maodern
slavery 1s Not taking place anywnere © our own
business or .nany of our supply chains, consistert
weth our obligations under the Moden &
2015, We expect the same righ standards from all

lavery Act
of our contractors,
partners As part of our contracting proce
e Modern

supplers and other cusiness
SSe5. WEe
expact aur suppliers to comply with th

Slavery Act 2015

The directors are respansibie f
Annua!l Report and the firancia

accordance with 2pphcable iaw

Compary law reguires the directors to grepare
financial statements for each financial year Under
that .aw the directors nave prepared the Group anc
Company finarcial statements n accordance with
United Kingdom Generaily Accepted AZcounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accountirg Standards,

comprsng -RS 102 "The Financial Reporting
Standard apr:w.‘cab\e In the UK anc Republic of
Irelanc” and zpplicable law) Under company law

the drectors must not approve the hrancial
staternents urless they are satisfied that they give a
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-

true ard farr view of the sfate of affars of tre Group

and Comoany and of tre proft o loss (frhe Croup

W
>

¢ Company for that pericd. In areparing the

fnancial statements, the direciors are regured ta

<t sodtanle accountrg pelces and tren appy
tnem congisiently:

ras, Compris ng FPS 1
vy materiz

discicsed and explainea in the fnancial

ocr folowss, supjectic a

+ Mace ;uugerrems and

aC
nacle ard orude

Sre reasoc ~rLand
« prepare the fina~c al staterrents on the gong

concen Dast uniess It 1 inappropnate to
presurne that the Group ard Company will

oNiNLE 1 DUSIn

The directors are a.s2
e assets of the Groun anc Comgany and Fenc
for takrg reztonakile steps for the praventon and

detecton of fraud and atherrreguanies

re 9.‘“0‘““ i for -<—Eﬁ|r

Tre directors

are adecuate
accourtng records trat are suffic ent 1o sh\m anc

Groun ana Company's transactorns and
B A

exo\am the
Close with reasonabie accuracy

di
financiai oosihan of the Group and

at any time the

Compary and
enghe trem 1o ensure fnat the fna~cizl statemients

an
comply witr t~e Companias Act 2006

The drectors are responabic for the mamntenarce

and imegnty of the Compary's wensie. Legislaton
in the United K ngdorm governing the prenaranon
arnd g ssemnation of Francial statements may d fer
from legislat or in cther Junsdic

oS

As perm tted by the Articles of Associatior, the
directors nave the benefit of an indermity wnick is
a guakfyng third-party indeminty provieion as
defined by sect s ACt 2006
Thie indemnity was 17 force throughowt the last

ion 234 of the Companie

nancia year and s currently :n force

nthe case of escn drector n office at the date the
Sirectors’ Heport s approved

ar as the cirector 1s aware, there ‘s rore

ror“r‘ ton of whick the Croup and

s auditors are uraware, and

» thiey have gk Ctne siops that they ought

to have taken as g crrecior in order 1o make
therrseives aware of ary relevant audit

irformation and to establisn that the Group and

Company's auziters 2

This confrmaton = g:ve—n and s-
i accordarice with the provisions of section 418 of

e Comparies Act 2Uu6

Srazt & Young LLP havng basn apnointed in 2022
oe reappoined
for enainer term and wili be proposed for re-

Fave indicated ther witingness 1o

7‘

Doontrhiess in GCCorgance witn sect on 485 of tre

SO0

crparies At 200

O

The Drectars recort was approved by the 3oard of

Uirectors on 16 Decerrber 2022 a~2 signed orits

pehalf by

PS5 Latham

e aware ¢ tmat informanecn,

sud oe irterpreted
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Dpinion

We have audited the irancial statercents of Fern
Tradmg Limited (he Farent Company’) and s
subsidianes the CGraup’) for the year ended 30
tenent of

sune 2022 whicn comprse the Grods
Comprehenzive Income. tne Group and Parent
e Sheet, the Group
Casr Flows, the Group and Parent Statement af

Compary Saance Stawerrent of
Chames in Zquity and the related noves 1c 29
ncluding a surmmary ©F signiicant accounting
po%ic e Th ﬁ na~c al raporting frarr ewcrk tnat Nas
eir preparation is app.acable aw
M Accouﬁtmg Srangards
Financal Renoring

Standard anchcabia in the U< and republc of
Ireland” (Linited <ingdor Generaly Accegted

« give atrue and ‘ar vew of the Group's arna of tne
Perent Company's affairs ag at 20 June 2022 and
of the Grour's profit far the year then ended;

« nave bean properly
Unized Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting

pregared in accordance with

Fracuce; and

« Nave been precared In accordance with the
requrements of the Companies Act 2006

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
Internasonal Stancards or Auditng (UK {(ISAs (UKD
and anpicable aw Cur responsibilities under tnose
standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financal
statements section of cur repart, We are

ncepenzent aof the Groug in accordance with the

athical requiremenrts that are relevant 10 our audit of

the financial staterments in the UK, including the
FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our
ofher ethical responsibiiities n accordance with
these requirements

N ‘K N

udic eviderics we have
ar‘.d approprate to provide &

Conclusions relating to golng concern
i gudurg the ingnaial staternents, we have
concluded th & of the gong
concern basis of accounng in the pregaraton of

at the directors us

the financial statements is aporoc-iate

Based on the work we have performed, we have

notidentted any matenal uncertainbes relabng w0
events or conditions thar, incividually or collective.y,
may cast sgrnifcant douot on the Group and Parent
Compaﬁy’s amilty ©

for g perod o

o continue a3 a golng concern
of twewve months from when the

finarcal statemants are autnonsed or 1ssue

Cur respons:bintiez and the FGSD""‘S\t lites of
tre drectors with respect o goin
are gescribas in the relevant sect-ons of this

J concernm

renori. However, because not all future events or
cond Lons can be predictes, this siatement is not a
guararnies as to the Group's acility to continue as a

goIng concem.

Cither informstion

The sther information comprises the niormatior
ncluded ‘n the arnnual report, other than the
financ:al staterrents and cur auditor's report
thereon. Tre directors are responsible for the other

inforration contained within the anruzl report

financia. statements does not
ept 1o the

Cur opnicn on the
cover the other informanon and, exc
exten: otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion
trerson.

Ovur responsitility i3 to read the other information
and, in domg 50, cons'der whethe the oiher
information 1s materaily nconsistent with the

financal staterrents or our knowledge oblained In
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

the course of Lor otnerwise appearsto be e cortain disalesures of Dreciors’ rermunerat or 3
rnater.ally mssstated If we denufy such mater al : specified by law are not made; or }
irconcistenc es or apnarent matenal missistements, | . .
. ) ‘ toe we have not recevec zil the inrformanon and
we are reguired 1o determmne whether this gives rise . .
P expanal ors we regure for our audit

to a materal msstatement in the nancia.
taternents thamselves, I based on & wor< we &&"iﬁpa“%gs% litios of directors

have perforrred, we corcluce that there is a

As explamed more fu&y ir the Cirectors

mater:al misstaternen: of the other in.‘or'hatlon, wWe

o ) responsbilities statement set out on pages 2% and !
are reguired 1o report that act _ !
30 the Duectors are responsible for the preparationr
We nave nothing to repert in this regard. i ofthe fnancia staterrente and for being sat sfied
! tratthey gve & ue ard fair view, and “or such ]
Sam § oo H H H
Opinions on other matters p § peseribad g convol as the Dreciors determine s ;
*xw Sah + . !
the Companiss Act 200 : y & the preparsticor of Frandial :
in our opinion, based on tre work urderiaen 1n : ‘ree from miateral f
the courze of the audi rn-ssratenent, wiether gus to fraud or aror
« the informatior. given 10 e Sratedic répart and i preparng the financisl statements, the Directors

the Directors report for the financal y
which the

tre Grous's ard the

are rasoonsio:e for

ar for

financal staternents are preparad s Parent Compan: ; th To CONUNLE a5 a goimng

conssient with the fing~<al statements, ard concern, dsclosicrg as applicable, matiers related
N L3 goIng Corcerm are Jing the going concern
- the Strategic report ang Direc deng

bizsls of accountng urless Mc Cirectors sither

bear prepared 1m0 accordance with appucasle

-

=nd 1o bguidate the Grodo or the Perent

tegat requ remerts.

Company or o cease operations, or have ro

Malters on which we are required to [ [EalSIC alemaive putto do <o :

raport by excaption ) e e N :
4 ® Auigitor's responsibilities for the audil :

in the hgnt of the knoweage a~d understarding o s ial
nhe hignt of the knowiedge and understararg of 1 of she financial statements

e Growp ard the Parert Company and its

Cur ’“D ectives are to oota r reasanable assurance

environment sotaned 1n the Ccodrse of the audit, )
a about whether e tnanc al staternents a: a whole

ve not izertufied mawerial rmstiatemrearts in
are free from material misstaterent, woetrer

Cl
!)

the Strategic report o Diractors report
S resart
We have nothing to rencrt in resoect of the 2SITLrENCE 15

following matters i relsuon to wrich tre St & guaranee that

Corrpanies Act 2006 racuires Us o report 1D you o,

waith 15 AS

IN Our Cormon Dol g
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Explanation as to what exient the
audit was considerad capable of
detecting irreguiarities, including
Hraud

rregularities, includ ng frand, are instarces of non-
compliance with laws and reguiations. We des'gn

procedaras ir
above, to detect irregui

Ire
Lo

outli
vd. Tne
eracnt dus 1o

Lne wth cur WGSDOHS\DIUUE‘S.

arities,

Tafe
Flia

ucing fra

nck of mor gdereciing 3 muatonal sty
of not detec
resuiting from error, as fraud may inva.ve deaberate

fraud s higher than the risx ung one

concecaimert by, for example, forgery or Intentiona

misrcpresentations, or through collusion The

gn

extert to wrich cur procedures are canable of

detecting irregularnes, incluging fraud s detailed :
below Rowever, the primary responsibiity for the
prevenuen and detection of fraud rests wath botn :
those charged with governance of tne entity ard
management.

Jur approacr was as ‘'cllows’

We obtained an understanding of the legal anc
requlatory frameworks that are applicable to the

Group and determined that the most significant
are thos ort 5

orting framewaork (FRS
152 and the Corrparnies Aot 2008)

se thal reiale 1o rep

We understood how ~arn Tradirg Limited 15
compying wih those frarmeworks by making
enquiries of rmaragement, those harqed with
governance and those respons bi
and comp<ance procedures as 1o any fraud risk
frarmewaork within the entity, including whether

A

Hsd

or legal

a formal fraud risk assessnrent 1s completed. We

corrclhorated our encuines through review of the
followrg documenation or periormance of the .

followirg procedures

cbtaining an Jrderstanding of entity-level

Conrols and considering the influence of the

control ervironment;

. We

JoLrnas analytics teols,

« obtanng an understanding of policies and
procedures n place regarding comipliance
with laws and requlations, includ ng how
compliance with such policies s maritorad
anc enforced; obtainirg an understandng of
ranagement’s proceass for identifying and

responding (o fraud risks, includ' ng programs

anc controls established to address risks
cenufied, or otherwise provent. deter and

detect fraud, and how sen
programs and controls;

ety rmManagement
rontors thoss

review of peard meeting rnnutes inthe penod

ang uo o dare of signing

antibility of the G

nents o mratenal ms

assessad the cuic Sroup'’s

financial state starement,
‘nciuding how fraud might accur by helding a

discussion with'n the audit tearmr which included:

An

= urderstanding the Groug's busines

contro. envircnment and assessing tha inharent

risk for relevant assertions at the sigrificant

account level including discussions with
managerent 1 gan an understanding of
those areas of the firancial statermments which
were susceptible to fraud, as identified Dy
management, ard

onzsidered the
estabishes (G

controls that the Group has
andress rizks identifed by

the entity or that otherwise seek (o prevent,

deter or detect fraud ircuding gaining an
ungerstandirg of the entity level controls and
paicies that the Group appliies.

Based on this understand:ng we designed our

audit procedures to wenufy non-compeance
with sucn laws and regulations Our procedures
ing of journal entries through

with focus

Involved tes
on manuel

Rgbur ey 3

GV Ease

Pl

e

TEI el

54 4 ‘
& wm.,m
tan

2

Teumbidy
et

&»ms exa@z»z SR

R

EEEE R IR Sted Lol

r

2
pehme e S ns

FRive b




34

3 COVIRNANC

independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

journals, targe or unusual transactions, or journals | to the company’s members those matters we are

meeting our defined risk criteria based on our required to state to them in an auditor’s repert and
understanding of the business. tested accounting  © far no other purpose. To the fullest extent
estimates for evidence of management bias; permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
enquiring of members of senior management responsibility to anyone other than the company
and those charged with governance regarding and the company’'s members as a body, for our
their knowledge of any ncn-compliance :audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
or potential non-compliance with laws and have formed,

regulations that could affect the financial
staternents; and inspecting correspondence,
if any. with the relevant licensing or regutatory

authorities. ﬁv’(\f@f&;% ¢ | “
A further description of our responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements 1s tocated on the :

Financial Reporting Council's website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibitities. This
description forms part of our auditor's report,

Michael Kidd (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalfl of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory
. Auditor

T VT Lt Tirhy it Belfast

This report is made solely to the Company's 20 December 2022

members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companics Act 2006. Cur audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state

i
i
'
i
i
i
i
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CIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Groun profit and loss account for the year anded 30 June 2022

2022
. - _ Note £'000
'Eumo;;.:w R s AT B e i st R SRR £ R ] 511830
L os st 3 5.5 (410,883)
Gross proﬁt S 300,947
Adminstrative oxpenses (258 251)
Operatmg proﬁtl (loss) 2 42,696
Cilbwe noeurnnie 1 3,550
neame from other fixed asset investments, 5,249
Skare of operating profit in jonl venture -
Proft on disposal of subsidiaries and joint venture 8 29,533
Ctner interest recevabie and similar iIncome & 130
nreret payaole and similar charges & (33,554)
Profit/(loss) before taxation h 47,604
T< K or p'“ﬁ Hloss\ 7 {16,294)
Prohtl(loss) forthe hnancnalryéér . 31,310
Attributable to Fern 37,932
Minority interest (6,622)
o 3310

{restated)
2021

425,302
221277
204025
23184

sl
5454

449
1755
28,568
997
(26067)
2663
@349)
eL012

(27,00%)
“4007)
(31 012)

Al results relae to conbriu'ng actrties Note 26 aertails the prior pencd adjustments,

Group statement of comprohensive income for the year ended 30 June 2022

{restated)
2022 2021
o £'000 ___f0oo0o
Profit/(loss) for the financialyear 31,310 T Lo
Other cemprehensive income
Maverments 11 cash flow hedges 77,985 44983
Foreign exchange gain/lloss) on retranslation of subisidiancs 18,561 (333}
Other comprehenswe income for the year R 96 54; T 744 6_>OV ”
‘I‘c:t:;l ;omprehenswe income for the year . MWWIEJ'BSS o " 15 638 )
Attributable to
+« Owners of the parent 134,478 17645
* Non-controlling interests {6,622) {4,007)




i
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Group balance sheet a2 at 30 Juns 2022
{rostated) 3
2022 2021 ;
£000 £000 :
- assets
Irtangible ass 5 557,708 576,759
Tanqible a 9 1,893,430 1581682 '
trents 10 35,452 11,000 ;
""" o T T T TS 486,590 2160421 3
Currentassets S
E){elens 17 184,479 94,711
Mebtors tncluding £138m (2022 £16 Timy 13 623,161 598,007 !
due Trnore ingn one year) |
Cash al bark a1~ hant 1 256,415 172478 :
S o 7 - R T ‘1,064 055‘“ V 86 \91
Crediibf;: amounts failirng due within one yearr 7 e (256 152) V (202 0“9: 7
Net current assets o o S 807, 903 o 663135 :
Total assets less current liabilities o 3204493 5832553
Credrtors amounts falling due after more than one year 15 o (992 425) 7 [ 993339
Provnsu:ns for llab]llhes 777777 S o 1f - (82, 620) (4%, SM) . :
Net assets . o - 2210448 1897842
Capital and reserves T
Called up srare capita, 17 161,662 149.6/6
Srara oremiun account 364,882 173118
Maorger reserye 1,635,569 1,440,257 i
Cash How hedgs reserve 63,006 (14,9791 i
lfon and ioss an zCoun: (2 770) 136,049 1
Total shareholders funds oo S 2,222,349 1884121
one rPl Terests ‘ (2,901} 3721 |
= approvec by toe Board of drectors on

PS Latham
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Company balance sheet as at 30 June 2022

2022 2021
] X £'000 ) £'000 )

Fl;(ed;ssets © e S e i R s -
[nvesiumeants 10 2,539,978 2. 716 366
S o © 2ssesre 2118366
Current assets - o
Debtors 13 39,888 50,383
Cash at hank ar< in hand 11 5 422 1,523
S 46,310 51,906
Credit‘;;s‘ amounts fallmg due wuthm one yearm R 14 - (449) (22,9‘_;_:6 M
Net current as-s_e_t; o S . -45 Ssrmmmmmm mé 9 m2
i:o;.;\lngéhsénts less current llabllstles S o ) zﬂgﬁé;;;;wmmm?l 5 8” ;
Net assets - 2:%55?839 2 J.45 3’ 8 ;
Capital and reserves
Caiod up share capital 15 161,662 149676 ]‘
Share prermiLm accoart 364,882 173118 3
Merger reserve 1,986,457 1,791,145
Profitand loss account 72 838 31 409
Total shareholders’ funds B T 258,830 0 2145343

The Campary has elec

sxemption under secuon 408 of the Companries Act 2006 not 1o
e

present tie Company proﬁt and loss account. The profit for the finarcial period dealt with ir the financial

statements of the Company was £236, 7

These firanca
anid are signed on ther behalf by

PS Latham
Cirector
Registered nurnber 12601536

| staternernts on pages 35 to 52 were aporove

d by the &

42000 (2021 loss of £157,504.C000]

ard of direciors on 26 Cecernber 2022
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Group statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2022

Called up Share Merger Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest {restatad) i
(restated}  {restated} funds g
{restated) i
E'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 E'Q00 £000 £'000
138,435 - 1635550 163837] 41185)  1668.982 9570 1678552 !
wreceened - - - 3875 3808 17703 - 17703 ;
agustree indle 26) :
et - ol 136435 - 1635565 159,962) (27356) 1686685 9570 1696235 |
e i
e - - - - 2005 (27005 (8067 (31.012) 3

g2t e market ;
of mazk fow - - - 44,683 - 44,682 - 449873

0% {ragraten 5
- - - - {323 (323 - 1333 !
- " - 44,5873 (333 44,650 - 24650 :
- - - 44,383 127.338; 17645 4,007 13628 |
- - - - 1831 L85 1847 ()
|
o R - - (195 317) - 165,312 - - - ]
Soaen e iy 11685 173,118 - - - 184803 - 13803 3
(444) - - - 6,399) (6,83 - (6,863 i
145676 173118 1440,257 {14979 136,045 1884121 1721 1887842
Balance as at j
3 . ,72 887, i
1 Juty 2021 (restated) 149,676 173,118 1,440,257 (14,979} 136,049 1884121 3,721 1,887,842 !
Profit for the
financial year - - - - 37,932 37,932 (6,622) 31,310
Changes in market
value of cash flow - - - 77.985 -~ 77,985 - 77,985
hedges !
Foreign exchange |
1oss on retranslation - - - - 18,561 18,561 - 18,561 H
of subsidiaries :
|
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Called up Share Merger Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders” interest
funds
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 E'000 £'000 E£'000
Other oy
comprehensive - - 77,985 18,561 96,546 - 96,546
income/(expense) for
the year
Total comprehensive
income/(expense} for - - 77,985 56,493 134,478 (6,622) 127.856
the year
Utilisation of merger _ 195,312 _ (195,312) _ _ _
reserve
Shares issued during 191,764 - - - 203750 - 203,750
the year
Balance as at
30 June 2022 364,882 1,635,569 63,006 {2,770 2,222,349 (2,901) 2,219,448
Note 26 details the pricr period adjustments.
Comparny statement of changes in equity for the vear ended 30 June 2022
Called Share Merger Profit Total
up share premium reserves and loss shareholders’
capital account account funds
o ) £000 £000 E‘Q00 £'o00 £'000
Balance at incorporation - - - - -
Lass for the financial year - - - {157.504) (157.504)
Utilisation of merger reserve - - 195,312} 195,312 -
Total comprehensive income - - (195,312} 37808 152504
Shares issued during the Qear 150,120 173118 1986457 - 2,305,695
Shares cancelled during the year 444) - - 16,.393) 16.843)
Balance as at 30 June 2021 149,676 173,118 1,791,145 31,409 2,145,348
Profit for the financial year - - - 236,741 236,741
Utilisation of merger reserve - - 195,312 (195,312) -
Total comprehensive income - - 195,312 41,429 236,741
Shares issued during the year 11,986 151,764 - - 203,750
Shares cancelled during the year - - - - -
Balance as at 30 June 2022 161,662 364,882 1,986,457 72,838 2,585,839




Group statement of cash flows for the vesr ended 30 June 2022

xshe N

Cash ﬂows from operatmg actlv:taes

Proinflicss) for the financial year attributable the owriers of the parent

Adjustments for:
Tax on proft/ioss)

Nterest recelvable and strniar incore

Irigrest payable and other simlar

(=18

e

Proar on disposa: of sukaidiznes and oine

verire
Inzarme from omt venture
Ircormre frorr fized assel investments

Armort

250N and mpainment of Intar 9 o xcd asse

Deprecial on of tang:d

NCM-C sraff ooste

tMovements on cerivatwes ana Tore gn exchangs
ircreasc n Sock

Uncreasei/decieass N geltorns
Increasedinccreass) in Credrors

Mo comtrouinq inferesis

Ta» rEfpwa flpa J

Net cash generated from operatmg actlv:tles
Cash ﬁows from investing activities

Purchase of subsidiary underta<rgs (net o 2asn arguired!

Sale of sLbsichary uncertzungs and jot vaentare
Purchaze of angicle asses

Purcaase of intarg ole asiets

FLronase of unistes mwestrriants

Sale of unistea invesimeants

Irteres: roceves

\r’ ’UFVIF‘ r’)rr' OH'W vﬁ'ﬁt JT”

Cash flows from hnancmg actwmes

Proceeds foam Frardrig

Irterest pa

Repaymerts of inarc ng

Proceads from share 1ssue

Ca"m, ut on of shares

Net cash gené;;ied from ﬂnan;-ﬁg activmes

Net (decrease)llncrease in cash and cash equ:valents

CAasn anc Cast egquivalents althe "‘ﬂ“mmrq of tre year

LS A ae T TR RS g e

NN

37,932

7 16,294
& (130)
6 33,554
] (29,532)
i5,249)
&) 45,762
g 101,802
3,040
(18,044)
{19,829}
31,022
(173,956)
19 (6,622)

41,897

(52,377}
101,778

(322,446}

{7.222}

{124,203)
He 105,000
3 130

(2993800

201,719
(32,319}
(32,013)

5 203,750
> _
341 137

83,694

il 172,478

[ff'a'"c~ gas or casth and r;rh eqguvalerts

243

Cash and cash equwalents at the end of the year

il 256,415 o

25 853

frestated)
2021

(27.005)

8,349
(997
36,068
(?8.568)
(1,755}
(449
37704
84,697
8.375
(15.788)
(5,701}
245,374
6,871
(4,007}

1,751

341,917

(221,987}
34,503
(110.,457)
(875}
(29.617)
20,133
97
1(1

(306 226)

(35,552}
(212,676)
184,359

6.399)

(7O 268)

(34 577}

206,688

367
172478

‘000
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Statement of accounting policies

Qom;mﬁy information

Fern fracing Lirmied (tne Company'j is a private company mited by shares and incorporated on 14 May

2020 Tae cornpany s aorniciled in Engiand, the United Kingdorn and regisiered under company numuer
126016326, The address of the regisiered office is at 6th Floor, 33 Heolorn, London, England, ECIN 2HT

Statement of compiiance

The Groug anc indwiduaal firancial siatemerts of Fern Trading Limited have been prepared in complance
witn Urited Kinodaom Accouanung Sandards, nciuding Financal Reporting Standard 102, "The Financ at
-ppucablc i the United Kingdom and the Republic of veland (FRS 1027 and thie

Repcrting Standard a
Corparies Act 20056

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financ.al statements Fave baen prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost conventon,
as rodified by the recogmition of cerain financal assets ard labil tes measurea at fair value, and in
accordance with the Cormpan.es Act 2006 ard acplicable accounting swancards in the United Kingdom. The

arincipal accounting poucies, which have been apgled consistently throughbout the year, set out below,

The consolidated financial staterments include the results of alt subs'dianez owned by Fern Tracing Lirmited
as listed \rnote 29 of the arnuzl hnanaal statements, Cerlain cormpanes of these subeidianes, which are
asted i note 29, have taken the exemption from an audit for the year ended 30 June 2022 perrnittec by
section 475A of Companies Act 2006 Ir order o allow these sunsiciaries 1o take tne audit exemipacn, the
parent compary has qiven a statutory guarantee, n lre with section 479C of Companies Act 2006, of all
the cutstanding net liabiihies as at 3C June 202

Giolng concern

The Group's and the Company's business activities, togethner with tne factors lkely to affect ts future
deveioprrent, performance and positicn are set oJdt tne Strategic Report or pages 4 to 14, Tre firancial
positicr of tre Group, its cash fiows, iquidity positon and borrowing faciliues are described in the finaricia.

review on Bages 25 to 27 The principal riaks of the Group are set out on pages 16 to 15

The Drectors perform an annual going concern review that considers the Group's ability (o meet iis
finarcial obligatiors as they fall due, for 2 penod of af least twelve months after the date that the financial
stalements nave been signed.

Due to the chalienging mar<et conditions management have pmformm an assessmant 1o determing
whiether there are any maternal uncertaintes arlsing that could cast significant doubt on the aziity of the

Group to cortinue as a go'ng concern, No significant is ues have beer rioted and as a consegquence, the
directors beleve that the Grouo 1s well placed to manages its business risks succes U despite the current

uncertarm economic cutleok

g
e

i
£
L




mpact of the uncertanty on t

CCONLIgRIanon Given to tne ’{;Mowarq,

A reverse stress test was performed on the base case forecast to ascerta - whiat scernanos wotld result In

SROWES YN In an wi ke sceranio of & signihcant redactior

of revenue of 45%, tne Group = aple to sustain its current operaticnal costs and rmeat ait Lah.
gl

due for at least a year fron the date of 5ign ng tese fnanca. sratements wihen usisr

facisties whin the Grouo

The Group has a number of financing faclidies that contam covenants requring the Group 1o Taintain i
rd comply witr cerian otner iinarcal covenars These fInancial covenants are

n
the Group = ir comgliarce wih all its rvafual

the oate of trus resort

sed (0 assest e covenant regairarments for the at least the next twelve montns ars

st to pe mMet sven under the aress test scerario, in tne going concern paricd

AL 30 June 2022, the Group had avadiaoe ™ and headrocom availacle of £441r noudicrg a

H

St : o : !

revolving credit faciaty of £210m Debt of £858m is due o mature 1 less than one year, witn the remamnder :
H

en more than one year I ment dates ano urdrawn amouris are :

set outin Note 16 Loans and Borrowings

)\

Rey acoourting judadement andg estirates have been made wiln CONsideanon gives te the current i

economic oJtdook Key estmates nclude loar recoverability, valustion of work in progress,

GoIOMIITISSIoONINgG rovie oo mpairment of gocdwii ard investrnents, buSINess comImanons ard naage
accounting. Details are set out on gages 50 to 521

lased on the above ascessment of current sconorm’s condions ana the moact on tre Group's fimaraal
pos bon, iuidity ard hnanc al cnvena

adeguale rescurces 1o contnue i operalonal existance for the ~ext 12 months Tius, tney continue i

cirectors nave cond uded Fat the Group ard Company has

adoot the gorg concern Ga emeants

s of accou‘wtimg in preparing the annual Tnancizl s

ﬁ‘xsﬁmg}?mﬁ& for gualifving evtitiss voder FRS 102

5107 alows a gu

Jying entty certan Jre exemplions, subiect to certan conditons, which have

been comglied wth, nciuding notif.cator of and no chjection 1o, the use of exemptions oy the Company's

sharehcicers
Trhe Cemnary haz taken advantage of the following exemot o7s

from preparna a statement of cast flows, on the bass that 1t $ a quaifying antity and the corscldated :

staterment of cash flows. included in these finarc e

stateraenis, incuded e Company's cash fows,

i from the financial icstramr ent disclosures, required under F5 102 saragrap
Daragranrs (226 7 . as e mformaton < prov.des 1 tne consoloae
[efiStaite WSS

frem discicang the Compary key managerment parsonce’ Zomnensalor, a3 reouied oy FRT 102




Statement of accounting policies

Bazis of consolidation

The consclidated financial statements include the results of Fern Trading Lisnited and all 15 subsidiary
undertakings made ug o the same accounting gate Ali intra-group balances, transactions, ncome ard
experses are elimnated in full on consclidaticon. The resuits of subsidiary undertakings acquired or disposed

of dunng the period are included or exciuded from the income staterrent from the effective date of
acquisition or disposal.

All undertakings over which the Group exercises cortrol, beng the power 1o goverrs the firarcia. and

subsidiary uncertakings
Where a subsidizry has different accounung policies o the Group, adJuam erifs are made W those

subsidary financial statements © apply 1he Group's accountng policies when prepanng the consalidatzd

cperating pol*cies s as to obtain benefts from their activities, are consolidated &
5

finarcial staterments.

ld or acouired during tre year are ncluded up e, or from,

1)

Ary subsidiary uncertak' ngs or associales so
dates of change of contro! or chnagnge of significant influence respeciively

non-contraling interest, the Group

Where tne Groun bas written a pus cotion over shares he! a
!Sed cortngent deferred consigerat:on liability

O the nor-controling interest an exerc-sa

1]
derecognises the non-controling interast angd instea
witnin other payanles for the estimalted amount i

of thcse options, The residual amount, representing he
and the non-cort:ciing interes:’s share of Net assets, is 'ecognised as goodwil Movements in the

A‘<Q
I
Q <
M
Uﬁ
D_

\f‘@fence betwaen any consideraten paid/payabe

estimated liaciity after intia. recogrition are recognised as goodwili,

Forsign currensy

i. Functional and presentation currency
The Groug fnancia. statements are presented in pound stering and rounded to theougands

The Company’s funciional and presentahion currency s poLng sterting and rounced 13 thodsands.

ii. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency trarsactions are rarslatea into the funchional currency using the spot excharge rates af
the dates of the transactiorns. At eacn penod end foreign currency monetary ites are transiated using the
closing rate. Non-monetary iterms mreasured at histor cal cost are translated using the excharge rae at the
date of the fransaction and non-rronetary iterns measured at fair value are measured using the exchang
rate wher fair value was cetermined. Foreign excharge ga ns and losses resulting from the sett'ement of
transactions ard from the ranslatior at peniod-enc exchange rates of monetary aszsews ard uabl{aties
denominated in foreign curencies are recogrised i tne profit and 10ss 3ccount

All foreigr excharge gains and losses are gresented in the proft and loss account wthin ‘adminisirative

experises’

ili. Translation

The tracing results of Group undertakarwgs are transiated N pounds stervng at the average exchange rates
for the year. The assets and dabilities of gverseas unaertakings, including goodwll and fair value adjusiments
ansing on acquizitton, are translated at the excharnge rates ruling at the year-end Exchange adustrnents
arising from the retrenslation of openng net investments and from the ranslation of the profits or losses

at average rales are recogn:sed in ‘Cther comprenersive incore’ and aliccated to non-contreling interest
3s appropriate

S,
TAE

by
5
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Statement of accounting policies

Turnover
Tre Group operates a number of classes of business Revenue s 2erived by the fo lowing:

v Ermergy
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Serve power

plants and Diormass and landnll sites s recogri sinwrich s

genarated Revenue from lor g-term government backed offtake agresments such a< the Rerewabie
o fres

o the

] scheme are gocrded 1n the period nwa'ch it relaes to. Turmover

=z recogrized on physical aisgatch

ant nsxs and ewarcs oF owWnaers

Turnover s racogrised when the si

i Of reursment propert.es nave
d retiably. ard t's

fow Lo the entity Turnover

passed to the buyer {on legay compieticn), the armount o revenue Car be recogr se

probakia trat the economic berelts gssociated with the fransaction

Srecegnsed at the farr value of the cons.ogration rec
f

>ves for heathicare services prov ded in tre noral

course of busness. and iz shown et of VAT Turrover i@ recognisac pased o he cate thie sen

ﬂ
<

]
ol

1

v Lemding

furnover repre ~d nterect on card provded o customers, ret of any va.ue

a
acded tax Loan rierest s recogrrsed on an accrua. basis o ine with contraciual terrms of the loan

agreamaort, Arrangement feed are soread over thea life of the lcan to w

« Fiore

£

forinernet connectivity ana re'atedy

o8

—

Turngver is recognised at e 310 value of e consideration recaved

I oserv ces oroviced i the norral cowrse of tusiness and s shown nel of VAT Turmover is recogises

bazed on ne date the seryice 15 orovided

¢+ House buiding

Turmgver 1s recogrises on egal completior of tne sae ¢f progerty, land gnd corraercia. spaces Turnover

—

from housing asscclation contracts is recogrized by reference o tre valiue of work completed as s

cropertion of the total contract value
Employes benefits

The Group orovices a rangn of henefts to empicyass, irc uding anndal bonds arrangemernts, pad notiday

(@3
(T

arrangements and dered conripution pension clans

i. Short-term benefits

Shors- terrn benefits inclod nig ~onday nay and other sim lar aon-roressy benefiss, zre recogn sed a:

i
o
3

xgenze rine pencd nwoich the service § rece yad

ii. Defined contribution pension plan
A defined cortribution pan s a pensior plar under wn on rhe Group pays Fxed cortnbutors
; -

O

a
as g further payment chigatons,

Ty, Dnce the ContrinLt ons Fave been pais ne

Trie Confricutions are recogrsSea as ar expenss when tray are gue AMourts not pad are shown

from the Group in indsperdently
dmiristerad Tunds.

s7)
Y




Statement of accounting policies

iii. Share-based payments
Casn-setiled chare-based payments are measured at far value at the balance sheet date. The Group

nizes a lability at e balarce sheet cate based on these fair values, taking into account the estimated
nurrber oF units that wall actualy vest and the current proportion of the vest:mg pencd

Changes in thig value of this liabiity are recogrised in the income statemens,

The Group has no couity-settled arrangements.

Firnancs costs

Finarce costs are cnarged 1o the pront ard 1oss account over the term of the debl using the effective
nterest reetnod so that the amourt charged s at a constant rate on the carrying amount. isz.e Costs are

mitally recogrised as a reduction in the groceeds of tre aszocigted capal instrument and reeased to the
crofit and loss account over the term of the celt

Lurvent and deforred 1ax

Tax s recogrised n the staterent of reome ard relzined earnings, exce

(r
=4
-
3
&
48]

H ange atfr-tutable t© an
tterm of :ncome gnd experse recognised as otner comprebensive income or to an tem reccgnised directly

N equity s also recognised in otner comprehensye income or directly n equity réspectvely

1

The current income tax charge s calculated on the pasiz of tax rates and laws that nave seen enacted or
substant vely enacted by the balarce sheet date ' the countries where the Company operaes and
generates ncome

Deferred nalances are recogrised in respoct of all timing differences that nave crigirates but not reversed
by ne Balarice sheet date, except that

« The recogrition of deferred tax assets is limited to the extent that s probable that they wil be recovered
aqgainst the reversal of deferred tax 'ahilities or other future taxable profits, and

« Any deferred tax balances are reversed f and when all conditions for retaining asseciatad tax allowances
~ave been rret.

Deferred tax balances are not recogrised in respect of perrmanent differences except in respect of business
combinations, whan deferred tax is recogrised on the aifferences between the fair varues of assets acguired
and the future tax aeductiors avaiiable for them and tre differences cetwee~ the fair values of Uabilites
acguired and the amourt that will be assesced for tax Deferrag tax s determined us rg tax rawes and iaws
that have peen enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Business combinations and goodwill
Business compinations are accounted for by apply ng the purchase method
The cost of a business compinatior s the “air value of the consideration given, liaoiites incurrad or

assumed and the equity irstruments issued plus the casts directly attributable to the business combination
Where control s achieved in stages the cost .5 the corzideration at the date of each transact on.

On acguisinon of a business, far values are attributed to the identifiable assets, liabiities and contingent
abilites Lrless the fair value cannot be measurad reliakiy, i which case the velue iz incorporated as
goodwill Where the fair vaiue of contingent liab lties cannot be reliably measured they are d'sclosed

o tha came basis as other cortingent tabilties,

S
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Statement of accounting policies

Goodw il reccgnised regresents the excess of e far value and directly attributanle costs of the purchase
cansideration over the fair values to the Group's mterest 1 e dentlable net assets, labilives and
contingent baoilites acquired.

'®)

on acqusticn, goodwill s allccated 1o cash-generating units (CGUS) that are expected o beneht from
tre comb natos

\

Goodwll s amortsed over it expected usefll afe wh ch s detesm neg based «

i
H

(]

-

—

© &5sels acquired, Where tre Group is unasle to make a relable estimate of usefu

amorused over a cencd rot exteeding ten years Goodwill is rev ewed and assessed for impartment
nchcators o an anndat basic and any impairment ic cnarged 10 the profit and loss

Tangible fix

dated to write

value, over tner expected use®
TIS Drought inte service Land ana assets n the course of Zonstaiction

Nenwork assets

Assats in the cours

avaiabie for use

sdvarcement or changss In warksl pr.oe, | w that residua: value

3

al value, uzeful pfe or depreciation rate are amended prosoectively o
ety are reviewes for impainment f the aooee facions ndcate that the

etermimeg by Comparirs the groceads wiln Ing 2arying amaouni and arz

Intanygible assely

Irtangibie asses are stated a1 cost less accumulated amori2atcn ans accumuiates imoar™e

e
Amarnsation is calculated, Ling the straight-ine met-cd, to allocate the depreciable amourt of the assels

Amcrtisahicr expersel gre includes i admeristraive exnenseas,

Developrnent r shts relate to planninc consent to hu .a g solar a7 ang a wnd “20 7 acquired o7 acgu sition.
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Statement of accounting policies

Where factors, such as charges i market price, indicase that residual value or useful bfe have changed, the
residual value, useful ife or anortisation rate are amended prospectively to reflect the new circumstances,

The assets are reviewed for impairment if the above factors rdicate that the carrying amount may

ne imgarec

Leages
At inceptior: the Group assessss agraements that transfer the nght 1o use assels. The assessment considers

woether 1ne arrangemertic, or conans, a lease based on the substarce o nd whethar

ﬁ
h)
s
[a1]
e
3
Q
3
[i®]
;D
]
]
A
[a1)

the lease snowc bo classified ac cither a finance lease or ar Operaung lea

Leases of assats that tranisfer substantally all tre nsks and rewards incidental to ownership are classfied as

finarce leases. finance leates are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the
ieased asset and depreciated over the shorter of tne lrase term and the esumated useful life of the asset
Assets gre assessed for impairment 2t eacn reporing date

o not transfer all the ris<s and rewards of ownersnip are cassified as operating leases.
Payrrents under operating ieases are charged ¢ the profit and loss account on a straight-ire basis over the

paried of the tea

il

investments

The Company hotds investments in a subs.dary at cost less accurrulated impairment losses. If an
irmpairment i0ss 55 sulsegquently reversed, the carrying armount of the rvestment s increased o the revise
estimate of its recoverable amount, but only 10 the extent that the revisec carrying armount does not exceed
the carrying arnount that would nave been determined had no impairreent (10ss been recogn'sed in prior
periods. A reversal of an mpairment loss s recognsed in the proft ard loss account,

Cash

Casr includes cash in hand and depasite repayat € or dermand Restncied cash represents cash for which
the Group does not have immeadiate and direct access or for which regulatory or legal reguirements restrict
the use of the cash.

Seovcks

Raw rmaterials, spare parts and consumatles are va'ued at the lower of cost and net reglisable vaiue. Where
recessary, a provisinn s made for absolete, siow-mavirg and defective stocik. Costis detarmned on the
first-ir, first-out (RFCT metod,

Fuel stocks (MBM and dtter) are valued on an average cost basis aver one to two manths and provizion for
unusab.e ltter 8 reviewes montnly and applied to off-site stoc
Fuel stock af straw nas tbeen valued at the hisiorical cost per tonne of straw A provisicn for unusable straw

5 denafed on an ndividdal stack basis and 1s reviewea montrly Stocks are used on a firstin, first out
("FIFC") basis by age of straw

Stocks of azsh at Fibrophos are valued at the lower of cost and net realisabie value to the Croup.

Stocks of property deveiopment work in progress (TWIF ) are stated at the tower of cost and net realisaole
property P

value. Cost comprses drect matenzls and, where applicable, direct labaur costs 2nd those overheads tat

nave been incurred in bring.ng the stocks © their present locations and condition
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Statement of accounting policies

At each reporting date, an assessment 's made for rnparment Ary &

3O d 3

Ralge gr‘ the proft and os: account Reversals of impairment (083
<

rg amourt of

m\

er its estimates ng price less costs o complete and sell i re

an e Ra Mment 1oss

are also recogrsed in tre pront and

Accrued imcome on loans s calculated at tne rate of interest set cut 17 the Energy noome s

accrued over the penod m which i ras teer gererated.

Deferred incoms

Deferred income 1s recogmised in accordarce with the terms set outin the 2o SRS
released to tne proft and (053 acccunt In the pencd o waich it relates
Financial instruments
chesen o adopt Sectons 1l and 12 of FRS 102 in respect o Ainanca. nsirL
Basic Snancial asscts, includ ng rade and oiber recewables and cash ard oank Laarces are ntiasly

recogrised at rantacuon proe, Uniess tre arrangement censtiutes a francing trensaction, wrere the
transaction is measured at the prezent vaue of the future rec g
Such as

ouned at a marke: rate of ne

s are subseqently carded at amrortisea cost uang the effecive ‘nrerest method

Al the end of eacin reportrg cencd firancial assets measuran al arrorused Cost are aisessed for obhectve

o

ance of impa rment. 1 an azset is migaires the impairmert io5s s the dAererice between the Caryng

armourt and the presert vaiue of 1ne estimated cash flaws discounted a7 the asset's original efiective interest

raxe. ine imparmert .oss 15 reccarssed in orolit or i0ss

Other financial azsets, noluding nvestrnants in eguity nstrumeis whick are rot suosidiaries. as

joint ventures, are initiaily mes o at far value, which 's normaly tr

M
i
]
Q
&
5]
>
o
=
(8]
i
M
)
)

i
subsequenty carr €a at far vawue ard e changes in fair value are recognised ' profit or oss

strrerts In eguity instrurments that are not putlicly raced and wrose fair values cannct oe meas.red
re.ably are mMeasured gt aost (25 IMpanment.

Fnancia: assats are deracngn sad whern (&) the contractual ngnts to tre cash flows from the asset expira or
are settleo, o (b) sutsianua.y all the nsks and rewards of tre owr:ersm,c of the astet ae ransferrad to

anoiner pariy or (¢ contral of the as

set has peen fransferrad (0 anoner parly who nas the gractical ability

the aszet tooan ur mird pacly witrout mmoes ng additora. restnichons

Baswe fnarca, dathn tes v oiucing rade and orrer cayac 25, band lnans, [oans from feliow Grous comoan.es
and prefererce chares, are iNJaqy recogmsed at arsacton Ornce, uriess re arrangertent conshitures a
Erascrg ransacton, woess the depl inslrament s measures a1 the present value of Tne future rece s




4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Statement of accounting policies

[ebt instraments arz subseguertly carried at amortised cost, usin g the effectve interast rate method Fee
naid on the estaplishment of loan facikities are recognised as transacton costs of the loan to the exent that
t1s probable that soe or all of the facility will be drawn aown. in ths case, the fee s deferred urtil the

draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it 1s probable that some or all of the facility will
oe drawn dowr, the fee is capitatised as a pre-payment for lgaidity services and amortised over tre period

of the facility 1o which it relates.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that nave been acquired in the crdinary colrse
of business from suppliers. Accounts payabie are classified as current saolities if paymeant is dug within one
yvear or less. I not, they are presented as non-cdrrent labiities Irade gayables are recoegrisec nitially at
transacticn price and subseguently veazured at amortised cost using the efectve interest method,

Financiat habilit.es are derecogn'ced when the liaghility is exunguished, tnat is when the contraciua!l ckligation
) 1
is dtscnarged, carcelled or expires.

Brovisions

Provis-ors are made where an event has taken place tnat gives the Group a legal or constructive obliganan
that probably recuires settiement by e transfer of economic beneht, anc a re aktle estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligaton

Provisiors are cnarged as an expense 1@ the proat and loss accourt in the year that the Group becomes
aware of the obigatior, and are measured at the best est.mate at the oalance sheet date of ine expenditure
required 1o settle the obl gation, taxing N0 account relevant nsks and uncertainties,

Hadging
The Group apolies nedge accounting for transactions entered Irto to manage the cash flow exposures of
rowings. interest rate swaps are Meld 1o manage the irterest «ate exposures and are designated as cash
flow hedges of floaung rate borrowings Charges in the far values of der'vatives designated as cash flow
redges, and which are effective, are recogrised directy in equity. Any meffectiveness in the redg.ng
relationship (beirg the excess of the cumulative change i fair value of the hedgng instrument since
incept’on of the hedge over the cumutative change 1n the fair value of the hedged erm since nception of
the hedgel is recognised in the profit and loss

The cain or loss recogrised in other comprehensive income 15 reclassified to the profit and ioss in
accordance with the casn flows of the hedged item Hedge accounting is discontinued whien the hedging
msirument expires, no lorgar meests the hedging criteria, the forecast transaction is no longar mighly
orokable. the nedged debt instrument 1s derecognised or tne hedgirng instrument s termirates.

Shars cagpital

Ordinary shares issued by tne Group are recagnised in equity 3t the value o the proceeds rece'ved, wiin the
excess over nominat valde being credited to snare premium.

Mon-controlling interesis

Non-controlling interests are measured at ther proportionate share of the acquree’s identinakble net assets
at the date of accuisiien

i
R
il -
e RSt
i

eaad Bhbarait L SR




4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Statement of accounting policies

Key sccounting judgernenis and estimates

Tha preparation of finarcal statements n complisnce witn FRS 102 fequ res the use of certan crinca:
accourtng estmates, 1L also reguires management o exercise J‘\J(Jgerr cin anplying the Company's

accourtng policies “stmates and judgements are continualy eva sed on n storica.
gp 9

exparience and other facters, includirg expectanons of future eve ved 1o oe reasonanle

unger the circumstances The key estimates ard judgements ir grenanng these iinarca satemrerts are.

i. Recoverability of loans and advances to customers (estimate)
Loans and agvances to cusicrners includeg associated ascrued incorme batances, are reviewad for
Irpairment o a guarterly basis. In considerirg the need for a provisicn. maragernert determine tnair best

estrate of the expected future casn fiows on a case by case basis. As this eztimate re
numoer ¢f azsumpt ons about future events which rnay oifer frorr acwal cutcomes, inCludging e
Lorrowess ability 10 renay mterest and capita: due i fuiure penods, this gves rice o judgement as o
¥ ¥ i f g

wherher therg 15 3 shortfall between tne carrying vaiue and the fair va ue of ne deptor balance

Management roe that provisions aga st ioant ard advances s a oritce’ estimate and ~ave there:‘orc
g Y

perfer-ned sensiny’ty analyss on the provision The reaugs of the senstivity analys.s conzlude trat a change
of +/- one per cent ir the ammcunt provided agamnst the estmatec haance at nsk would bave resultez in

LI em less/more experditure being chargen o tre incorie statement aur ng the penoa See rotw 13 for tre
carrying amount of the debtors ard provisons at 30 June 2022

ii. Value of property development work in progress WI1P’) (estimate)

Praporty development WIE s reviewed for mpairmert on a peacaic basis ~ considenng the recd for a
p{OWSV\"W maragenent determira ther best estimate of e recoy

:'h

rab.e value Ma*auf‘mﬂmt £ngage ar
[

cart externa, vaiLer to provice key a:sarrpions abowut future events wo.ch rmay d. fer

outcomes, ncudicg oroperty valuators, rate of sales ard deve opment CosTs.

These estmates give nse (o judgamenrt as (o wnetrer there 15 a shorifal between the carrying value ana the
> a8 3t the 30 Jure 2022 Post year end, maragement have rev ewed the

e
assUmoptions usen o determine the vaiue of

DroperTy d evelopment WIF and nave cpserved no changes in
performance that woud impact the valuation as a7 the 30 June 2022 5See note 12 for the carrying amount
of the proparty development WIF

iii. Purchase price agreement (Australian entities) (judgement)
Tre Group Oowns two erargy geraranng sabeidiaries in Australlz which have eriered nwo purchase proe
agreemerts [PPAS) N 2012 and 2021, The PPAs include a contract for afferences "CfD" whereby the

subsciares pay/rece ve amourits from tne customer bases on tne differerces between a fixed sellirg crice

and the actuzl price for £

cctricity sold o ke
107 section 12 a3 1115 for 172 sale of & non-Ana-cial ters and the OO s wypica ‘or

Trerefore Tis DEing acooonteq for U 2 sa T @ revenue contract witt

iv. Business combinations (estimate)
Trie cost of a business compination s the

costs directy atribltacle 1© the business cor
and more cetz'is are oroviced on pages 4510
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v. Decommissioning provision (estimate)

The prowis on for decormnmissioning costs is measdred at maragement's test estimate of the present value

of the expenditure recurred 1o ettle the future chligation o returr land on which there are aperational wind
Tne

and iolar farms, to s original condinor. Tn
the estrmation of future disrnantling and restoration Costs. as weil as the tim.ng of dismantiement.

level of the provisions 15 determined to a significant degree by

Wind Farms {estimate):
Managerrent note that aecormissioning provis ons is a aritical esumate and have therefore performed
sensiuvity analysis Tne results of the sen smwty anaiysis conclude tnat a change of +/- one per cent in the

2in IFELFE:E&:‘/(JEL(‘:GJ\, ir the provisian. Ses -iote 17 tor the orovis on

~

discount rate wou d have resulted o
recogn sed at 30 June 2027, Management utiize exiernal expertise to provide an esurmated cost

dismantle and have used 2 discount rate of 2% w reflect the tme in valLe of morey and the risks specific
to the oo\'gawn.

Australian solar farms (judgement):

The Group s reguired to restore the leazed prerises of the solar farm o their ariginal conaiion at the end

of the lease terr. A provision was greviously recogrised, Rowever in the currert year s judgarment has

neen reassessed and rranagement believe “he lessor may wisk to elther take tole of the aszels for ether
ontiriued use or 1o reause value mroLgh selling the assets and as such do not beteve that ar outflow s

Sroba‘me 10 settle this restoranon obugation,

UK Solar (estimate):

Durning the year a third party performed an assessment of the bate cost of the d*:—:cornfnssmn'ng o>f the
Nave resul ed in material change in the cost estimate and therefore a
firs: time o some sites, The impact ha< res ut :¢ I a provision beirg

Groups UK solar farmsz. The findin g‘s '
prov’sior has been recognised for the
raized for £18m 1o the balance sheet decornmussion.ng liabitity anda fixed assets. at 30 Jure 2022 there s

ng IMpact on the profit and loss, Sites not affected are adaressed below

U¥ and French Solar (judgment}:

Managerent believe that given the nature of these particular assets, the lessor may wish 1o either take title
of the assets for either continued use or 1o realise value througn selling the assets and as such do not
believe that an cutflow 5 probab e to settle tis restoraton obligat on, Management will continue o monitor
the situaton at each balarce sheel date.

vi. Impairment of goodwill and investments {(estimate)

The value of goodwil: held by the Group and investments in subsidiary undertakings held by the Company
15 reviewsad armaliy ‘or impairmert The recoverablity of these baances 15 consideres with reference o the
presen: value of the estimated future cash flows These calculatons use cash flow projections which extend
forward forecast busingss performance together with assumptions surrcunding tne expected ife of the
azser, externaly prepared forecasts and valuatiaons, and any adjustiments required to the discount rafe o take
account of business 71sk The estimated present vaile of thase future cash flows is sersitive o the dizcourt
rate and growtn rate used in the calculation, all of which require management's judgement Testng of the
carrying value has been performed durng the year, which has involved several scenarics being modelled
Basea or this test ng and the -esulting impairment reccgnised on invesiments, management believes there
s sufficient headroom o support the value of goodwill and investrrients in suosidiary entities

Management note that imparment of goadw Il anc investments 1s a crizicat estrnate and have therefore
performed sersitivity aralysis on the provsion. Tne resdlts of the sersiivity aralysis conclude that a change
of +/- ore per centin the amount provides aga nst the estimated palance at risk would have resuited in
E5.49m less/more expenditure being cnarged 1o the income statement during the pericd See note 8 for
the carrying amaurt of the goodwit and nvestments at 30 June 2022,
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fouen

Analysis of turnover by category

Energy aperauons - solar, resene power and wino
Erorgy Operslonrs - biomass ard landhll
Heatricare coerations'

brane buaoing

2022

S £'000

R s
365,958
223,526
45,978
25,034
8,930
711,830

e v EKERLont st paans ot e

2021

56,55
179,820
141.82¢

42,266

4838

425,302

£1000

Urctaded mrcome from Healthcars operations 13 L2740 2021 £11 2y reating W tne sale of retrement vikage unis,

anc E2% &r (2021 151 Tmiin reletion to services

Analysis of turnover by geography

Unitad Kir

Eurcna

lest of wond

enderad

2022

603,911
84,433

20421
£000

384795

31,893

8,610

425,302

Other income

Congurance proo

2022
£000

2021
£6o0

3,550

8454
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MENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Amortisation of imtangible as

5 (note 4]
Iripairrment of .rrangible assets note 8)
Depreciaton of tangible assels inote Y

ors’ remuneraton — Comnpany and the Group's corsolidated

Audirors’ remuneraton - aucst of Company’s subs dianes
Auditors’ remuneration - ron-audit senices

Audizors remuneralior — 1 COmpliance services
Cifference on forcign oxchange

Cperaling tease rentass

2022
£'000

e Bt oaeae oeita FEEIRATIee, CnEe B % e aRERRRe e ph SRR i e bR R AR RS A RS %

37.849
7,913
101,802

45

819
246
482
7772
13,783

{restated)
2021
E'C00

B S R B AR R0 42

37,704

84,657
146

1134
513
672

4402

7502

MNote 26 detads the prior penod ad usiments.

kSRR SR

oAl secunty Costs

Other persicn costs

2022
£'000
85432
7041
3,233

95,706

2021
£°000

o o e b R e T 7 e

41383
3,909
1,676
46,968

The Group provides a defired confributior schemes for its employees in the UK The armourt recogrused as

an expense for the defined contrbuton scheme is shown in the tzble above

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

2022
Number

2021

Number

P S

Sroducion

Adrrurastration

1,032
631
3

1666

699
348

3
1050

The Cempary had cne errployee other than Cirectors during the pericd ended 30 June 2027 (021 none).
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202%
£000

Ernclumrerts 163
Durng the year no penson contributions were maae 10 respect of the directors (2021 nenel.
Tne Group has 7o other key managerrert (2021 norel
A namber of suosidiaries o tne Group operate a cath-settied LTIP o qdalifying empicyoes, whereby
ernployees render services in exchange for cash, t~e amount of wricn is detenmired by reference to the
valLator of the Lnder ying subsidiany. Tre ‘air value of the liac ity for ihe awards made s moasured at each

n

recorirg date and at the settierent dae Tre farr valuc ciorised over the vesting per od The amrou

of expanse recognized fakes Nt account the bast avadzbile estmate of the numbar 27 un e expected to

vest urder the service and performance condinons underlying eac~ award gramed

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions with employees

2022 2021

Number of Nurrber of

o awards awardf

utstanding b 1,914 751 l 640 OO'J

Grantod dung e oenod 1,763,563 274,751

Closing outstanding balance o i w3 678 314 1,914,751

The total \,mrgr— for tne year was £3,133,000 12021 £1,334,0050; and at the 30 June 2022 thare was a
labiity of £2. 407000 .rciuded

dth o croditors greater rar one yegr (2021 £1.334.000)

&

Interest receivable and similar income 2022 2021
£‘000 £'000

\r Zrest on nank t‘wtar

Bt T TP T amsmewspanesrsyive e, M0EY FRrReTen

130 997

Interest payable and similar expenses 2022 2021
E'OOO £ (;(u’}
;5 e e . 32 192 e 34 378
Amortizat o O ssue S5 On Dark Lorrowrgs 2,597 1.1G3
Frosttloss on dervatve aranc.a. nstryrrerts {1,235) 587

""" 33,554 26,068
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AR TS

a) Analysis of charge in year

(restatedt)
2022 2021
e _E'000 £'00Q0
cu"enttax TR & e o b 0% T § b e a2 W T e e A e G B S RS SRR 1§ R S RS
LK corpzration tax charge on profit/lloss) for the year {297) 1648
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 3,196 {2,866}
Forown rax SL,ffNr‘rJ 5,641 -
utal current tax Fnérg@ncrem-wm T e 8,5ﬂ4?)w (1218!
Deferred tax:
Ongination ard roversal of tming differences 6,227 2,074
Adjustments n respect of pricr pericds (3,741) (3,598}
Effect of change in tax rates 5,268 11491
“otal deferred tax e 77154 9567
fax chall'ée on proﬁtl(losﬁion ordihar& acfiﬁitiés : 7 7 - A1‘6,2‘94 . ‘ 8,34%

b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for the year 3 nicher (2021 rigner] than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of
% 12021 19%). The differences arg expained below

{restated)

2022 202%

‘ ) E000 ) £'000

Proﬁtl(toss) before tax o . 47 60‘: T (21170}

~ 1) befora T Lliclie dard rate o
chrggrgsﬂnbi;:\; [Fcf LrJﬂr(.Jo‘!! ]‘93 (O?J/Ojjml:/d) ' f 9045 (4.022)
Efecis of,

Expenses not deductbie for tax purpose 11,723 16,076

Otiher effects {868} 1.022

Incorme not raxable for tax purmoses (8,102) 9,351

Adjustiments in respect of prior perlads (545) {6.865)

Eftects of charge in tas rates 5 041 'll 489
Total l;ax charge for the year - - - o o o N 16 294 - 8 249

c) Factors that may affect future tax charge

The Finance Act 2021 enacted on 10 June 2021 increased the main rate of UK corgoration tax from 19% ©
25%, effective 1 Agril 2023 Deferred taxes on the balance sheet have been measurad at 25% (2021, 25%)
writch represents the future corporation tax rate that was enacted zt the balarce sheet date

MNote 26 details the prior periog ad ustments
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Software Goudwill Development Total
{restated} rights

Group o £‘000 o £ 000 o £'000 __E000
Cos:N\ e £ e a1 L s s e T A R,
AL L July F071 (restated) 964 726,602 10,216 737,782
Acguired throegh business 30,042 4,058 34,100
Compinagions mnte 27]
Adaitians 2125 - 1.040 3,165
Dispaosals - {21L1185] - {21.118)
Gar Cntransiaton - 793“ - 7930
At 30 June 2022 S 3,089 o 743 455 h 15,314 7777777 ‘761 859
Accumnrlrlrarii:;a;ﬁ;;lrlsatlon - o o 7
AL L Juy 2021 Iregiatecs 107 159,902 1,034 161043
Drspesals - 2.4¢2) - (2.462)
Loss or transtat on - {192) - (192)
Irpalrmrent - 7,913 - 7913
Ch{:r'qe ‘or ll"e year i2 5/ ..Jl4 ‘32J 37849
At30 June 2022 o us 202475 1557 208151
Ne( book valwe S -
At 30 June 2022 2 970 540,981 13,757 557 708
Ar30 June 2020 estated) o as7 seere0 o1 s7essn

The gain on translation of foreigr currency denarminated goodwil s recogrised n otner cormprenersive

income Amcriisenor of goodwil is crargec 1o admirsstrat o costs.

{

Betais of the subsidianes acquired du-ing the year erded 30 June 2022 can oe found in note 2

o
¢
B
3
[59]
i

the year the graup disposed of 2 wing farmis 10 Finland, as a resut £2 5m of

alcu
amortisal ¢nowas recogrisas 1N the current year and £19 3m of gocowil was reauseq on the szle, Gan on

sale recogrised in tne prolt and loss in relat on 1o s trarzachon was £28m
Imparment of £79rn has tear recognised on goodwill (2021 ~one)
MNo gssets nave cean predged as secunity o lisbilites at year end (2027 nera)

ne Cormpary had rno intangibie assets at 30 Jure 2022 2027 nora!

=
[&]
D
ro
o
[
I
[
>
—

Fe oncr penod adjusirenis
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oo w2

Land and Power Plant and Network Assets under Total

buildings stations machinery assets construction (restated)

(restated}
Group £°000 £000 £'000 £000 E°G00
E::st i R R B L BB .
AL Juy 2021 (restaterd] 8,531 217467 1695437 27,288 43,277 2,092,000
Additicns 829 1536 73647 60462 238,006 374480
1 DusInss 1,308 - 51,344 - 57,653 110,315

Fxftar value rmovernant - - 368 - 3,254 3662
Transiers - 68 1,066 36,936 132,070) -
2 posals 125} - (75,551 : - {76.088)
At 30 June 2022 10533 319071 1745511 118,686 310170  2,504,37%
A;cumutat-ted-dt-apn;e-t;i;tion-”” .
A lJey 2021 4410 90,059 414,559 1290 - 510,318
Charge {or the year 183 17130 81,141 3,348 - 101802
Disposals ~ - (182 221 - {403}
FX maovernent - - {776} ‘ - (776}
At30June2022 4593 107189 494742 4417 - s109a1
Net book value 7 . l ‘ ‘ -
At 30 June 2022 5,540 211,882 1,251,169 114,269 310,170 1,893,430
AU June 2021 freststesi 4121 227408 1280878 25998 43277 1581682

Included within tanginle assets are capitalised finance costs directly attribuiab.e 1o bringing the assetin
use. The net carrying amourt of assets Peld under finance lgazes nc.uded in plart, machinery, fixtures and
fithngs 15 £51.785,000 (2021 £51.534,000 } Included in network assets 1s a provision of £1,023.000 for
opsclete equinrmert and development

The Cormpany had no tangible assets at 30 June 2022 (2021 none;

Note 26 details the pnior period adiustments.
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Untlisted
investments Totat

Group e : . . e BOOG L EOOO
ccst and net hc;uk value QQQQQQQQQQ e e g S s L e e gk s R s AR ST
AT Juy 2021 11000 11,000
Adritons 129452 129452
D| po\dl% (105,000) {108, OOO)
At 30 Jum;_ 2022 o e e o 35,4572 ‘ o 35 452

At Z0 June 202 1 11,000 11 000

Subsidiary
undertakings Total

company O N o rnuge e -w<£loo°u~ o e £‘oo° .
ALZG Jre 2071 2311678 2311678
Adchtizms 226,300 228,300

D\Jr,cg is - _

At 30 June 2022 . S “ 2 539 978 2 539 978 7

Accumulated |mpa|rments

At 30 Jure 2071 195,312 195312
Reversal of imparmerits {195,312} (1G5, 312)
fnpawmpnfw - -
Atso Juma 2622 e i e s S AR
Net book value

At 30 June

2,116,366

Cetails of related undertskngs are snown i note 29,

a lerding
Fn October 2012 wir

trewntartion of %ndu:mg a prooorion of s fufure rade thfoug!“ fne pactnarshis Ay

Unlstea invesiments comorise the Grolp's cowding of e memoers captal of Tendo LLP,
B \

Dusiness, ane itz starenelding in Bracxe Trad:"g Limited. Ferm co-founces Tendo

vos and disposals
in e co LL7 m l-e wilr Ferm's 2ash

of LN

i1 Bracken Tradimg Limites from
vas TMNL U230 Sure 2021 Enr

a
s mary urdertaargs of Fern

tire Conmie Ferm's nvasimantin Bracken

Tradityg Lirrired
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5 SRR S S
Cast includes zash in nand and deposits rezayable o dernanc.

Restricted cash represents casn for whicn the Group does not Fave immiediate ard arec: access or for
which regulatory or legat reguiremients restrict the Lse of the cash

Group
2022 2021
N nex Cammay | mmen oy e E'ODO EOOO
Cashan ban< and 10 han S 195,823 117,141
?esfr ted f,,.b‘f“ 60, 592 55,337
Cash atbankandinhand - - o 7256 415 S 7172 478)7‘

Rectricted casn s comprised of £726,000 held in cscrow and 252,866,000 of cazh held in subsidianes with
br-annual distrnibutior windows.

The Company Fad a cash balance of £6,422.000 a5 at 30 June 2022, none of wihich was resincted (2021
pany

rone;
12 )
Group
2022 2021
£000 £000
1,538 2.195
Fuel, spare parts and consumables 26,023 18.593
Property deve aoment WP 156 918 e 923
184 479 94,711

The amount of stocks recogn.sad as an expense durirg the year was £120,413.000 (2021: £41,212.000),

a3

tncluded in the fuel, spare parts and consumables stock value 15 a crovision of £330,000 for unusable fuel
stock (20210 £259,0C0) Includi~g in property development W P s g provisior of £928,000 for warranty ard
Le spec fic provisions

There has been no impairment recognised guring the year on stock (2021 nonel, NG nventory has ogen

'O

lecgen as security for taoiltes (2021: nonej

The Company had o stocks at 30 June 2022 (2021 nonel.
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B SRR

Group Company
{restated)
2022 2021 2022 2021
E'OOO

EEERT.

Amounts falilng due after one year
Loans ang advances 1o cusiormers 137,662 16,128 - -
Amounts falling due within one year

B R B a b S0 6 SRR B n s ¢ e

Loans and advanres 10 Custonens 223,239 369,384 - -
Trade debtors 42,050 16,121 392 a8
Arpoiits owen by related pact os note 24) - 3850 32,950 12752
Cither deblors 20,199 24,972 3,843 5,008
Corporaton tax - ©,/803 2,527

Derwatwe firancal instrarrenis inote 21 54,409 6469 - -

nd acornsea income 145,602 154 37‘: 176 JZ 6 6
623,161 J9d 002 39,888 4,553

000 £'000

Loans and advancas to customers are stated ~ot of provsions of £13.874.000 2021 £18199 200)
ionz of £4735.000 (2021 £12,/43, 0001

Frepaymeris arg acorued noorme are siated rot of pros

No nterestis crarged on armounts owead oy group wrdertak ngs, as the culstanding ba.arces are unsecured
and repayanie on demand (2022 none]

Note 26 detalls tme pror period ag.usiments
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R S LR S R NI SIRSLAECICINTA BRI IO
Group Company

{restated)
2022 2021 2022

E'OOO £ O”O o _E'000

L;=r % loans & overdraf:? inoTe 1*)J 87 732 47 586 -

[rade croditors 58,004 23,350 76
Otber taxator and social sccunty 8,161 - -
ot creditors 24,382 55906 -

Arncunts due o related pacties (note 245 - - -
Finarce «cases inoie 16 2,428 5147 -
LDervative fnarca instruments (no: 21 - i43 -

Acoruas ana deferred ircoms 75 465 7’2 f‘d? 373

256,152 202059 BT

2021
EOOO

FERLFEPYRES R R A p

20,203

270\1
22 824

Group
2022

2021

Amounts falimg due between one and five years ) £'000 E'QO_G‘
Barx Loaﬂh: au:w:l oxerﬂraft) {noie 16) o 383,070 247297
frrance leases (nore 18] 5,899 6,125
Dervatve fnanca nstrumrents fnate 21 - -
Otrier crogitors - R S,WSGW‘!W - 5415

394 333

258837

Group
2022

2021

Amounts falling due after more than five years £000 E'OOQ
Sark \o;;fdn‘d ovérjrafra frote 16) o 573,416 577235
Finance leases inae 16) 24,676 24,495
Dervativ ancal nstruments (nlc)fo 21 ) B S - 4277?

Total credicors faikng due afier rmore than one year 992,425

544,502

903.339

The Corrpany has no creditors due in greater than one year,
Amounts owed o related parties are unsecured, nen-intaerest bearing and repayable on demand

Note 26 details the prior period agjustments.
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G e Dol o s

2022 2021
Group £'000 £000

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, L T T LT it L L LT Armrenvie

Lus none /i qe 87,732 47,386
Due betwesn orc and qve years 383,070 2472597

Lu( nrore

1 044,218 871918

573,416 577.235

Tre Compary had no bank oans ai 30 Jurs 2020

The banx lcans are secured ananst assets of the Group vith each loar as neld by the subsichary shown below

Interest rate 2022 2021

o ane o B eI TTEP SO S

"6 month SONIA plus 160% 420138 438,140
Cedar Energy ard ‘nfrastructure Limites LIBOR/EURIBOR plus 2.00% - -

3 month EURIBOR plus
1.20%, Fixed rate 1.70%

Elos Frergy & 1.2% + 6 month EURIBOR 56,079 -
Soomerang Erergy Limitec & month SONIA plus 1.50% 284,348 295,344
649% (swap rate of 4.59% +

19% margin)
Melinn Renewable Encrqy L Lirnited 6 month SONA plus 2.25% 85,718 103439
Dulacca W tle doo PTY Ll 1.7% + BBSY 31,614 -

5% NIA + 2.5% =
Eivia liomes . imited 5%+ 50 +ZJ/ nen 12,306 -
utilisation fee

Vinors Energy Lim

Elos Energy 2 30,946 34995

Darbrgion Doirs Solar Farm Fry © mitad 114,026 -

e AsseT Maragement Lim ted Fixed rate 2.5% 43 -

£000 000

1,044,218 871518

SOMA rep.aced L'BOR as the effecive irlerkark lensing rate systerr from 1 Jaruary 2022 The rate changs

resulied nNo commercia. impact 1o the business.
Finance leases

Trefuture minmnum france wease oayments are as follows

2022 2021
£'000 E'000

MNot

aler than one year 2,428 3165
Later thar, one year and not later than five years 5,899 6,196
Later than five years 76,461 72,013
Tota gross oaymrents 84,788 81,375
uss W%rm "r"amr < (51,785) (47609}
Carrylng amount of the liabitity 7 7 . - 33,003 33766

Tre firance leases prmary reate to a leased cudding a-d healircare equprert — nere are o conimgert
re~ta., renewsal or purchase ophion Cliauses. Rents payaole ncrease by ocal rilancn Sinance lesses are

secured agamst tre leas ed aszets

The Comgany had no firance leases at 20 lure 2022
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3oy e e

Decommissioning (restated) {restated)
provision Deferred tax Total
Group . £'000 £'000 £000

AL Juty 2028 20435 20,933 41,372

Hd vt

Incrasse recognised nooroht and toss 21 11,485 11,516
Increase recognised through othier Compranensive ncorne - 18,202 18,202
Imparront ’ 16 - 16
Increase recognised in fixed asse’s 23,656 - 23656
Recognsed on subsidiory anquisifiors - (3.568) (3.568)
Adjustient in respect of pnor years - (5465) (5,465}
Lnwand.rg of disco st 249 - 24G
Adjustiment relating to change 0 4ccounting eshmate {3.373) - (3,373
Tain on frans'aior 15 - 15

At 30 June 2022 43,023 41,597 82,620

The decommussichning provision s Neld W cover future obiigations ¢ retun lang on which there are
operaticnal wind, piomass anc selar farms. to thewr criginal conditon, The arncurss are Nnot expected tc be
dtilised for in excess of 25 years.

The Company had no provis ons at 20 June 2022

MNote 26 details the pror pericd adjustments.

b R O L A I L LI ALt

The Group and Cornpany have the foigwing share caoital

Group 2022 2021
Allotted, called-up and fully paid £000 E0O00

1616622011 (2021 1495, 755258)
Orginary shares of £0 10 each

161,662 149,676

Company 2022 2021
Allotted, called-up and fully paid e £'000 £'000
1.616,622,011 12021 14596,755.258)
Ordinary shares of £010 each

161,662 149,676

Durng tne year the Croup issued 129,866,754 (2021 1.501.199,278 ) ardinary shares of £3 10 each for an
aggregate norminal va.we of 211,987,000 (20210 £150,120,000) Gf the shares issued cunng the year, total
consideration of £203.750,000 (2621, £2,316,695,0C0; was pad for the shares, giving rise 0 a premium of
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atat

£191,763,C00 (2021, £173,118.000) During tre year the Greup

1
ordinary shaves of 20 10 eacr with an aggrecate nomnal val

of £rul (2021 26,844,000 was pa:d for the snares, gving rise to a

Tre Group has adopted predecessor accounirg OT‘HC;QEES as twas forred as patt of a grous
reconsiruction, therefore the share capial ana share prerium accolnt are treagted as f trey nad aiways

exsted Moverents in ihare capital arsing hoth ‘ce.‘oze ano afler the resracture zre raported as ~ovements
i the Group share capital

)

Dunng the year the Comip ssued 119,856,754 (2021 1,501,199.278 crdinaty shares of £0 10 each for an
aggregate noTinal value cf £11.987000 (2021 £155,120.000) Of the share 2c during tre year, tofal
consideration of £202750,000 (2022 £2 316.695.0100) was pa|d for the share:. gvng rise to a premiurn of

1971 762,000 (2021 £2.166,575 0001 qumg the year tre Group parchased ~H2021 4 444 020; of ts own,
ordinary chares

im

Tolal corsideraton

s ¢f £0.10 each with an aggregate noming. vaiwe of Erel (2021 £442 207)
of E-il (2071 ;6‘844,30'13] was pald for the shafes, gi‘-/if:g rise o & premium oF Dl (20210 £6 385,000

>

_‘

nere are no restnchions on the citribuiion of dwvidends and e

[P - i I [ A P
nerc s a single class of ordinary snares.

Cash flow hedge reserve
The cash flow necge reserve 15 used ¢ record transactions at1sng from the Sroun’s cash flow

hedgmg arrangemer

Merger reserve
Tre merger reserve anses 1o the alfference belween the fair value of the shares 'ssues and the ook

values of the subsid ares acaured
The mevernernt in ner-cortroiling interasts was a: follows

Group

Nate 2022 2021
£'000 £'0660

3,721 9.570

Sale of subsidiany ureertakings ard accuisition .
N e T e 27 - (1.842}

of nor-contaling nees!

Tota carrprenens.ye koo atnbulalie 1o

non-co

(6,622) {(4.007)

r‘nﬁyahr.

ALED L

(2,901) 5721

e MR s
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

cross the Group or Comeany

b R L UL

Carrying amaounts of financial assets and labilives

Group Company
{restatecl)
2022 2021 2022 2021
Group ‘ £'000 £000 E’OOQ £000

BTN - 538 A T N 30 ne ST R

e BRaEEY e B bR R

Carrying amount of financial assets
Debt instrurrents measarec at amortsed Cost 423,150 430,556 4,235 17,767

seasnred at fair valie throngn preht and ioss - 6465 - -

Megsurad at fair value through oiner comprerensive mcome

Carrying amount of financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost 1,126,163 956,584 76 16

Measured at far value through other comprehensrye income - 42772 -

Nate 26 detals the prior penicd adjusirments

A2 Fa
fvopu degh

TNt Eireeed
g
i \Q'

o1 25337 L
B
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Derivative financial instruments

The Group's financial rsk management sesiks 10 minimise the exposure 1o market s« credit fisk, liquid ty
and cash flow risk, and energy markes risk

a) Market risk

Energy market risk
The ernergy secior s expenercirg signifcant turbuience and there s a sk that forecast evels

ircorre are
not ackigven due 1o crangeas in waciesale energy prices, off-take contracts or governmen: subsidies
Changes in Government oolicy, or regulator intervention may result in requced income streaTs within the

|

group due to add t onal tev es,

Currency risk

Tre Grouo presants its corsolidated Franca! statements in steriing and conducts busiress . a nurnber of
othar currencies, principally Zoro ana Ausiraban dollar Conseguently the Group s expesed to foreign
excharge rsx cue 1o excrange rate movernents, which affect the Group's transacuonat expe~ses and the

rransation of e of 15 nor-ster. NQ GOerELoNs

rrnng and net

Transactional exposures

Transactioral exposures arize from acminizual ve and other cxcense in currencies cther than the Group's

presentational curercy Serhng), The Group enfers i o forward | axchanne conwrac:s and fore gn

excharge swaps to mitigate the excnange rate risk for certam foreign currency sayables and recepts. The

forward currency coniracis and swaps are messured at ‘air value, which s determnec using valuation

=

eoarigues that uulse cbeervabie npi
exchange rates for GBP.AUD and GF

e The ey Inpufs usa2c i valumg ne derivatves are the forward
EJR Or 30 June 2022 the fair vaue of the forewgn currer Ly
conwacts was an asset of £ (2021 £6.469.500) and & lianity of £0ii (2021 £1£43.6030)

Translational exposures
Baiznce sneet translational exposures arse on Qonso' daticr on tne retrans.aticn of tre baisgnce sheet o°

on-sterang operattons irio sie

ing, the Groug's presentatiorat currency. "ne >
by mariagement and the potentizl foreign exchange rmovement s witmin a1 2ccenianle level of risk and

—

therefare tyoicaly tre Groud's pelicy o not to acovely hedge these excosures

Interest rate risk

The Groun has exposure 1© flucuations inirterast rates on is Borrowngs, Where tne Group enters ine

horcwing arrangements with flcairg rate ntere

m

a swap arrangement is entered rto o fix @ porion of
the interest In creer to rmitigate agairst an increase N interest rates. The portion of interest to be fixed 3
e

whether 1o hedge account for tnese

T
Q

o Lo appy hedge accolrtng for mterast
rate swaps. 1ne s el T A prn farmount of the ioan faciity and maiure on tre same gane
Oin 30 Jure 2027 tre cutstznaing interes e sywart have a matuny in excess of five years and the far

vaiue isin an a3sel positon of £54 409,000 (2020 Jzb Ity of £42.629.000)

Price risk

The Groun - megium-term jender o tre resicertal propery markel To the extent that there ¢
deteroral Gr N the eve of house prices thiat affects the proparies trat the Group's 'oans are secured
aganst tnere sarskinattme G iz ful exposure. T s s miigated by the shor-e

a
rature cf the lnans anc the conservative levael of ioar 1o va.ue that the Group s prepared o lend at

H
i
H

|




Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Credit risk
Custorrer credit rskas rmitigated througn the Croup's cred t contral policies, wnich are in glace to ensure
triat Gur custorrers have an appropiniate cred.s hustory and are maonitored on an orceng basis

¢) Liquidity risk
Liquidity nsk are managed by ensunng that suffic ent caszh is avatavie to fund cortinuing and future ogperatons

Liguiaity risx anises on bank .0ans in piace acroess the Growp and 1s managed through careful monitenng of
coveranis and sensibie levels of debt. Borrowing is on a iong-term basis, whereas our revenue s received
throughout tne year, as well as interest and redemptions on Gilr short-terr nan hock Cash fiow risk s
managed through ongeing cash flow forecasting to ensure receips are sufficiert w meet lab-lties as thay

fail due

BE a0 s e Do e e
At tre year end the CGrous had cag el cormitrrents az folows:

2022 2021

£000 EOU0

347,254 90,156

Urdrawr faciifies on icans to horrowers 173,600 92633

At 30 June the Group had toral future minimum lgase payrnents urder ron-cancellatle cperatirg 2523
as follows

2022 2021

Land and Other Land and Other

buitdings buildings
e E£'000 £000 E£000 ECO0
Hot later thar one year 8,707 661 8031 749
Later thar one year and nos later than five 31,627 726 30,369 16856
years
pater har e years L eses4 - mEem 9

135,998 1,387 157,332 2444

The Group had na other off-gaiance sheet arrangements (2021 nonel

S

Lnder sections 3944 and 479A of the Companies Act ZC09, the parert company Fern Trading Limited nas
guaranteed al outstanding hablutes on those companies taking the exemption to wnich the suisidiaries list
on pages 79 © 90 were subact to at the 30 June 2022 untl they are satisfied in full These babilities total
£915™. Such guarantees are enforceanle agaimst Fern Trading Limited oy any person t© whom any such
aability 1z aue.

Tre Compary had no capital or ather cornm tments at 30 June 2072,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

T
£

Cn 11 July 2022, Fern Tradirg De elopﬁ"ent Umuted UFTDY) 2 subsidhary of the Greup, succes My sold
Darlinglen Point Hotdeo Pty Lirnited to Octopus Ausiralia Mazter Trust, A srall profit of £856,000 wes made

o the sales,

On the ist of December 2022, the Group acauired nghts to 3 £25m credit voucher and the nght 1o use

rmobile pcerses from Trree UK, via a Strateg.c Connectiviyy Agreement, tus maxng the first step wowarc

becorang an mobile virtual network operater

24 ©

Under FRS 102 3314 disciosures need not ke given of transact.ors anered irto petweer two or more
members of 3 Group, proviged mnat any subsiiary wheh s a party to the transaction s wholy owred by
such a memben

Curing ne

! Group by Octoous
Investrnen:s Lirted, 2 related party due 1t significant influence cver the entity Octopus invesirents
: £16,0G0) by tre Grous. AL

Limited was recharged leg f
vear end, an amount of £5.500 2021 [21%.000) was out tq. ding which s mcluzed ir 1rade crediters

The Grour

itled to a profit share as a result of 113 investument in Terdo . reigted party due to ke
rmanagarnent c-efgonme! ncomrrion. in 2022 a shate of profit equaL to £5,243,. 000 (2021 £449000; has
been recogrised by the Group At the year eng, the Croup has an interest ir the mermber's capiial of

S35 452 000 {2021 £1.,60C,90C) and accruad income due of E 27600@ (2027 £479 500;

The Group ergages in lending goiivities which include balances provided o reatec pasties Aegarding
erines with <&y managemeant personnel in common, loars of 263,490,000 (2021 £1735,224 000), accrued

R s

mcome of £19, 789,000 (2022 £26 3,000 a~d ceferred income of £qil (2021 £101,000) were osiztansing
year and, [Gur.ng the yea' irterest income o° £71605.000 {2!’322_: E17.581,000; and fees of £354,000 (2022
£536,0C0) weare recogrised i region to thase lcans

Durng tne year the Group acquired 9 reserve powsr comparies from Coipsnies ma
Investrents Lirited, @ relatea party See nowe 27 a) for dotails of the comparies aco.red.
As at 30 June 2022 Ent {2521 £3.950,275 was owes (o the Company by Bracken Tradirg Lended, a related

party by key maragement personnelin corrmo
Otrer tnan the ransactions disclesed apove, tre Comoany's cimner related party transactiors wee wih it

whoty ownea subzidiary mermbers of the Groun.

o6 L e e e e e

4

TINe SPINen O G aiiaie cortraling oalty Or parert CcormipaTy,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

2% B L0 HE “ ':;:A‘ o '*"i'*. n

a) Group structuring review
We nave conducted 2 review of prior years a

ccounting treatment of irtercompany restructunng In this

reviewe management idenufied unamorused goodwill balances in relahion to these transactions We have

adjusted the grevicus years to reflect the implementauon of amortisation backdated tc wnen the relevant

transact.ong occurred.

e accumulated irnmpact for the goodwill amartsation in the profit ard loss for 2021

was EBm (2020 £5.3r) the movement of £2 7m ~as been restated ihrgugirout the 2021 comparatve

nuriers A sumrmary of the imoact of the car-ection s provided below

Year ended Adjustments Year ended
20 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)
Group & o £'000 £06G0 £'000
Cooawl, 5832388 (5,335) 578,65
Retamed eamings 41,185 5,335 46,520
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated) (restated)
Group ) £o000 £000
Gooawill 602,711 594,662
Retained earnings {123,520) (115,871}

Ag

o

art of the review of the \ntergreup restructur.rg menrtiored above. management identifiec onie of the

restructures had been incorrectly accounted for ir a sub secuon of the group. NG further errors were
discovered in the review. The accumulated impact for goodwill amort:sation in the profit and .oss for 2021
was £2 5m (2020, £1.3m;, the movemeant of £1 2rm nas been restated throughout the 2021 corparative
riumbers This mpact to the 2020 cpening retaired earmings was offset by £2.1m written back against bad

debt exoenses Management have corrected the identified errar with the folowing imoact.

Year ended Adjustments Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) {restated)
Group B £'000 £'000 JE000
Gocdwill T 583,588 (29,183} 554,80;\‘“
Retained Carmings 41,185 899 42,084
vebtors 842,549 (2.724) 839,825
Creditors, amounts falling due within one year (232,813} 456 (232,317)
Fixer assets 1,346,655 30512 1,377,167
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) {restated}
Group S E'000 £000 ) £'000
(,1'7'::(*m oo e ta e £ S R AR 8 PR R PR w602711 .......... MWTPW“ ) e .
Reta red sarnings {123.9201 (321 (124,241)
Debtors 600,726 (2.724) 598,002
Creditors arnounts falling due within cne year {207,318 496 (206,822)
Fixed assets 1.551,170 30512 1581682
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Deferred tax adjustment
We have conducied a review of all consciidat.on entries at sutsections of the groun We rave wdentted an

O

error relating 1o 20193 when dafarred tax adjusimenis were entered as a consoldation entry and had
subseguenty not been reversed. We have chiecked tme tax per subsidiary account and have ersured that the
relevant balances are correct. The error was oosted at a conzolidated level orily and Mas now been corrected:

st}

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) {restated)

Group £'000 £'000 £000

B U A S DO P U P SV TUIIE P S DN CUUDISE oS 2 Y S SINE ELT P PRSI SRRRIEE O S RIS S VR SO

Reramed earmnmings 41,185 (4.764) 36421
Creditors amounts faling due with = ang year {232,813 4,764 (228.549)

Tris hiag s knoc< efect into Sune 2021, the restated balances are at folows

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2021
{as stated) {restated}
Groqu B ] £'000 ] £fl)00 ) E'OOP )

Retained earmings (123,920) 4,764) {128.624)

Creditors amounss fal ng aue witin one year [207.318) 4,764 (202,554)

In prepanng the tax compotations for 2022, the Groun's tax ady <ors have moncen 31 overleoked
assumphion im prewous years tax corsolidatcr calculatiors Within the greviously dnrecegnisea deferred rax

assers heid witlhin the grodp some were avalakle on a consoldated level 1o offset the Grous's delerrad tax

Lanility. Or anirdividual compary bais the deferred tax in previous ye

b

ars had ceen correctty reCo

par: of these deferred assets are i~ relation o case flow nedges reld wirin the
for with n other comprebhersive INncome, 1ne acc,
for 2021 was £15rm (2025 £15271)

Jruated impadt far the tax cnan ge r e profit and loss
I the movemenrt of 300k has beer resiated thro Jgkou the 2021
comparative numbers

Asumimigry of the imogct o the correction s orovided celow

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)
Group £f000 ‘ £ 000 . E'OOQ‘

Retarned earn-gs 41,185 115,299 25,886
Cash How nedge reserve 63,837 {2.875) 53,962
Deferran tax pravisions {36,484) 19,174 (17.310)

i
i
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) {restated)
Group S S £'000 o E000
Pewm]e(‘ea”mgﬁ e RS (123‘9;5) ‘(1"5@013;
Cash fiow negne resarve 17,098 14979
Deaferred tax provis,ons 138,145] (20,933)
Summary of prior period adjustments:
Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) {restated)
Group , e e e e £'000 £'000 ... K000
Goodwil 583988 {34,517} 549471
ebtors 842,549 {(2,724) 839.825
Fixed assels 1,346.655 30.512 1377167
Deferred tax prov sions (36484) 19,174 (17,310)
Casn flow nedge reserve 63837 {3.875) 59,862
Creditors arnourits fallirg dus within ane year {232.813) 5,259 {227,554)
Year ended Accumuiated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated) (restated)
) £000 £000 £'000
aminge (230200 (2.129) (136,049)
602,711 (36,011) 566,700
Devtaors 600,726 {2.724) 598.002
Fixed assels 1,551,170 30.512 1581682
Deferred tax provisions {28,145) 17,212 (20,933
Cashi flow nadage reserve 17,098 {2,119) 14,975
Creditors arnourts falling due within one year (207.318) 2,255 {202.059)




Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
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a) Reserve Power a
On 2 July 2027
for consiaeration ©

cquisition ;
the Group acguired 3 reserve power sites through the purcnaze of LO0Y of the share capital
ot e

[ou)

Tre following tanles summarise the consasraticr gaid Dy tne Group, the ‘air va S acouTe

and e latilities assumred at the acguisiton cate.

Consme:‘atlon E’DOQ

s T S 1 * * @ e 2 seaneanams e T o Tt o a e s TeNmews L, 4 amtsM b 4t FTREiRabies | TAbeENAX e i

Cash - !
Total consideration -

Detallz of the fair vaice of the nat assets acguired and goodwil arsing are &s folows 3
Book value Adjustments Fair value ‘

. . WEOOQW\ . £000 L :

oo e BO88 (855D |

:

Trade and olrer recanaties

Frepaymenis

Cazn and casn egavale! (s

lrade and other creoatnrs

294 -

635 -
7855

{2,206} -

Loans (58 816} R
28,553 (28,553) -

Total conslderatmn -

Goodw ll resuliirg rom the basiress ¢

Tne consctdated siatement of comprehensve iIncomes for the year incluses £45 803,300 revenusz and a
oroft after tax of E686,000 in respact
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Doveryard Limited acquisition
On 22 Cetober 2021, the Groug acqgured Doveryard Lmiteq and its suasidiary throwgh the purchase ©
100% of the share capital for consicerauon of £12414,000.

—~F

The foliowing tables summarise the consderation paid by the Group, the fair value of assets acguired, anc
Jabilities assumed at the acguisiuon date

Conszqgratlon ) v s S ;QBO .
Cash 12,377

D'er t by aftri mabf: cos - 1037__

Total conslderatnon 13 414

acguired and goodwiil arising are as follows:

=
D
—
[abl
LA
[l
T
-
(%3]

Deta.ls of the far vale of the

Book Adjustments Fair
values value
. - » £000 _E'000 £000
:XPdeSg;gm‘ Ry o s o
irade ard other recevatles 52 - 52
Srepayments and acc ues nonme 193 - 193
Trade ard cther f‘rprluo's (467) -
N_;s;;ts acqmred T 347 R
Coos e e e et e i
Totalconmderahon - R o

Goodwili resy hng from the business combination was £13 067000 and has an estimated useful ife of 25
years, reflecting the ifespan of the assets acquired

The consolidated starement of comprenensive income for the year includes £nil of revenue and a loss
nefore tax of £123,.000 in resgect of tnis acquisition




wuf
EY

4§ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022 %

c) Dulacca acquisition |
Cn 27 August 2021, tne Group acquired Dolacca WE “ioldco =TY Lo and its three subsidiaries tirough the ;
purchase of 100% of the share capital for consideranon of £115,683,002.
rmarise the consideraton paid by the Group, tre “ar value < of the assets acguren, .

Ttme acau sition date A st of the enttes acg.wred incwden in note 23

Consideration ‘ _AUD'000  ExchangeRate £'000
Cash 217,557 15904 115,085 §
1126 18904 595 1

Total conmderatmn 218 683 115,680 '1

Detz:ls of the fair value of the net assets acquired and Mtanginle ansing are as foliows.

Book Adjustments Fair Book Adjustments Fair
values value values value
) ) AUD 000 AUD 000 AUD 000 £ 009 £’0{00 ) £000 :
e e T T I ress ™ Tees D Teess
Trade and ofter rocarailas 10,131 - 10181 5,357 - 5357 ;
Cast and cash =ruvalents 103,072 - 103.072 54,525 - 54,525 3
Accraals and deforred nCome flO 952) - (10,95“ 5,795 - (5./93) g
Netasséis"acquured - 209 884 oo 209 sa4 ‘ "ﬂ.; ozs"“ S 111 026 :
U T e 8799 . e e e 4,654' i
Totalééhnderation ..... o ’ - S 218,683 AAAA o 11”.;;68'0;w ‘
intangibles resulung from the asset purchase was 4654000 and nas an estmated useful bfe of 30 years, H

reflecting the lifespan of the gssets acquiren.

Tre conscloates staternent of comprehenive Noome “or INg year Incudes £n6 of revenue ard a toss alter ‘
;
tax of £237000 in raspect of this acgustion !
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d) Zestec Asset Mangement Limited acquisition
On 31 January 2021, the Groupg acquired Zestac Asset Mangerrent Limited a project scurces for rooftop

solar, through tha gurchase of 100% of the snare capital for consideranon of £4,765,000.
The following tabies summarnse the conzigeration paid by the Group, the fair value of azsets acquired, anc
3

5 SU
labil tes assumed at the acquisiuon cate.

Consideration L £'000

SRTNY R P [ETE 2 N

Cash 3672

Leferred considerat on -

Cirectly attnbutacte costs 1,093
Total consideration 4,765

Detaile of the far value of the nat asseis acquired and goodw Ul arisirg are as follows:

Book Adjustments Fair
values value
E'000 £'000 £'000

B R T R 3

Sired assets 156‘ - 156

Tracoe and oher credinons {574} - (574}
Tracle and cther recerasles 400 - 400

Casr and cash equivalernits 1019 - 1,019
Ditherioans (46} - (46)

Net assets acquired 955 - 955

. 3,810
Total consideration 4,765

Goodwils resultng from the busiress combination was £3,810.000 ard has an esumatad use‘ul fe of 10
years, reflecting the estirnated lifespan of the assefs acquired
The consclidated staternent of comprehensive income for the year includes £298,000 of reverue and a loss

pefare tax of £494,000 in respect of this acguisition.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

e) Elivia Homes acquisition
On 23 W a) 2022
ne smare capital for C

Sles summarise the considera
liabtes assumed & the accusiton date. A st of the ennties acquired a7

Cons:deratlon

RKORS i ay o TR RRRRAGY Mt anan ar

Total cons:deratlon

. 1ne Group acquires Zivia Holdngs Uimited ana its sub
srsiderat.on of £21,654.000

idiaries, thro

tion paid oy the Group, the

‘ar vaue of asg

Jgh e purchase of

acqured and
neluded nonote 293,

FROSUNS VN Y 30999
685
32 684

Detaiz of the fair va

Freesci d_:cc
lrtangible asset:

Stock

Trade ana oiner debtors
Cash anc casn equvalenis
Accruals and delorrec income
frovigions
Ce'errec tax
Trads arr OthHr

Net assets acqu:red

Fmrzw g

J(_.(;d v’ ‘H

Total conﬂderatmn

Book
values

£000

TROPEER G G T AT Gae L e TUHRRER mas

418
11.767

ocdwil arsing are

as follows

Adjustments

£'000

11.400j

(1 400)

Fair
value

£ 000
i
11,767
£9.939
2.609
11653
(4203

(920)
42600
1£9453)
30133
51

31 684

Goodwell resuturg o tne

years, refiecting the life

profat oefore tax of £7 802 SO0 ir respect ©F this acawsinon.

seful ‘e of ZC

cornprehensve -ncome ‘or the year incluces revenue of £25.03
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Cur reported results are pregared in accordance vt United Kingdom Accounting Standaros, inciuging
Firancal Reparting Standard 102, as detaded in the Financial Statemerts starting on page 35 of the Arnual
Repori Ir reasuring our performarnce, the inarcal measdres that we use nclude theze that have been
cerived from cur reported results ir arder to eliminate [aciors that distort year-on-year comgsanscns. Trease
are considered non-OAAP financial measures

Net debt

We provide net deztin additon to cash and gross debt as a way of assecsng our overall cash posit.on and

s computed as fol.ows

2022 2021
MNete £000 £000

Bal;k \(;ar‘.s aﬁc overdrafts - 16 S 1,644,218 871,918
Orther loans -
Gross debt 871,918

(256.415) (172.478]

Cash at bank and
793,167

Net debt

699,440
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

EBITDA

Earnings belore interes, tax, depreciatan and ammarusat on {EBITOAT s calouated by anjusting oroft after
tax for imterest, tax, denrecaton ang amardsation, 17 adaiton ta income anc exgerses that do not relate 10
tre day 1o day coerators of the Group We pro\:if‘ EETOA Ir addition Io ot after tax 45 it alows us 1o
assess our performance without tre effects of financirg ana capta. expendilures

Trne folowing ehie detals the adjusiments made o the reported resuts

{restated)

2022 2071
o Note . Fo0O L LEDDO 5
e o e e e R e e
Ada ;
37845 37704 2
7913 - ;
101,802 84,697
ayable and siilar cxoanse 5 33,554 36,067 §
Exceptonal iterms 1,105 -
Tax 7 16,264 8,345 :

Arcormeal.on of tangible assets

oo

Irmpalt rent o intangible assets

%3

Deprecator of ang e 355e™s

Less
ircorre trom othicr Hred asset nvestrnents (5,249 1443) :
Srare ¢f operaung Drottin joint venture - (1.755) :
Profic or ¢sposal of subsidiaries (29.532) (28,568)

o siiar neorne 6 1120) 597)
EBITDA 194,916 104,035 !
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Details of the suosidiary Lhdertakings are as folows:

Country of Class of
N e 5 v ooicOtporation  shares Holding
;\bbots Ripton Scear energy Holagmg L\rrasteydn"m ‘ ‘UK Ordinary 100%
Adalnda Soar SRV L Limited ™ UK Ordinary 100%
Agrisol-2 SARL” France Ordirary 100%
Al Networks Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100%
Allports Fibre Lrmited®™” UK Ordinary 100%
Auchencarroch Energy Limiteg?” LK Crdinary 100%
Augubirie La~d Company Limited™” Ui Ordinary 100%
Avenue Solar Farmn Limited” UK Ordinary 1G0%
Banbury Power _rmited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Bausolare 5 SARLS France Qrdinary 100%
Bansclare 7 SARLY France Ordinary 100%
Beetley Energy Limed™ UK Qrdinary 100%
Beighton Snergy Lirnited’ UK Ordinary 100%
Beinneur- Wind Farrn Ltd™ UK Crdinary 100%
Bellhcuse STnergy Limted™” LUK Ordinary 100%
Birch Estate Solar Limited™ LUK Crdinary 100%
Blaby Solar Farm Lirmited” UK Ordinary 100%
BNRG IOW Lirnited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Bclam Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Boomerang Energy Lirmited UK Ordinary 10C%
Boreas Erergy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100%
Bratton Fleming timited™ UK Ordinary 160%
Breck Sotar Limited”™ UK Ordinary 160%
Emtgépdw Solar Developments Holdings Ui Ordinary 100%
Bryn Yr QOdyn Solar Developments Limited™ UK Crdinary 100%
Bury Power Limited”™ UK Ordinary i00%
Cadoxton Reserve Power Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 106%
Cawcias Energy Limitsd™ UK Ordinary 100%
Cark Limired® Irefand Qrdinary 100%

Principal
activity

Y

Hotding company

Eriergy generation
Energy generation

Holding company

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Diormant company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generaticn
Energy generation
Holding company

Energy generation




]
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
Name e o o o, INCOTDOFAtion  shares Holding activity ..
Casweli Selar Farm Limited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy g@merat\on
Cathxin Ere-gy Limieo®” LK Ordinary 100% Energy generat:on
Causilgey Limites” UK Ordinary 1G0% Energy generation
Cedar Erergy ar.c nfrastiucture wirpited UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
CEFE Berceronne SARLT France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
éi:fs{;uszggl:'e de Producton o frerge de France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
CESE de lz Saiesse SARLT France Crdinary 100% FEnergy generation
Erg;itfﬁ:fcﬁ:’;ﬂigf 22 :Zi?g:g;e France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
france Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 160% Eriergy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy generaton
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Holding company
Cretson Meadow Erergy Lint ted™” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Crhispon Solar Farm Holdings Limiiad™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Chitter.rg Sowr Two omited”” UK Ordinary 1600% Energy generation
lgwyn Energy mimite UK Crdinary 100% Dormant company
Clamr Farrn Limiten™ UK Ordinaty 100% Energy generaton
Ciargrrend Salar SPY 1 oimated™” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
CL= Devesprrents Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Dormant company
CLP Envirogas Lmited” UK Ordinary  100% SP‘;?\:’I'(;‘EZ” of C&M
CLP Services Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Dormant company
CLBE 1991 Lmited” UK Crdinary 100% Dormant company
CLSE 1599 Limiteg”™” UK Crdinary i00% Holding company
CLRE Hodings mten” UK Qrdinary 100% Hoiding company

UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation

UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation

UK Crdinary 1G0% Energy gereration
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

CLPE RGC - 34 Limited”
CLPE ROC — 4 Limited”™

CLPE ROC - 4A Limited™

Ciyne 2ower Limited™

Coitaryorth Encrgy Limnited™
Corno~ Bridge Erergy Limitec™
Cotesbazh Ene-gy Limited™

Cour Wird Farm {Scotiand) Lirnites™®

gy

Crapnell Farm Limited™

Crayfern Homes (South Coast) Limsred ™

Crayfarn Limitad!*

Crayfern Sunley (Shnfeld) Lirmitegt

Craymarshn Lim-ted”™

Cressing Solar Farm Limsted™
Culvery Power Limited™

Cynon Power Limited™

Dafen Reserve Power Lirmited”™

Dairy <ouse Solar Lmited™
Deepda.e Farm: Solar Limited™
Doveryard Limited™

Drapers Farm Limited”™

Dulacca Energy Project Co PTY Ltd'?

Dulacca Energy Project FinCo PTY Lid®?

Dulacca Energy Project Heldee Co PTY Ligh?

Dulacca WF Holdeo PTY Ltd!?
Dyffryn Brodyr Limited™
Eakring Lemited™”

Elecscl Camargre SARL®
Flecsol Franice 7 SARLS
Elecsol France 11 SARL?
Elecso! France 15 SARL?

Elecsol France 19 SARL?

R BRI A K € b b bl 2 oL b

Country of

& bt ot 035

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

LK

UK

UK

UK

K

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
UK

UK
France
France
France
France

France

incorperation shares

Class of

Principal

Holding activity

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Urdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Crdinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

100%4
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

160%

160%

160%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
10C%
100%
100%
100%
1604
100%
100%
100%
160%
160%
100%
90%

90%

100%
100%

Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Deveiopment of
building projects

Construction of
domestic buildings

Development of
building projects

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

S UKRREe Y Y Y Y R evees VTR

O. Frame 27 SARLY

Elecso: France 24 SARL®

Blecsa France 25 SARLS

France SAS*

Elos Energy 2
Elios Energy 2 Limited
Elicss Energy 3 France | SA57

tlics energy Howdngs 2 Lmited”

Ehos Energy Holdings 3 Limitea™
Elios Erergy Holdings Limiteg”

Elios Renewabie Energy Limited”

Elvia Developrment Fnancs Lmitents

Elivia Haldings Limvted

Eliva domes (Centrall Limitedt

Elivia Homes (Dormant 20 Limuaedt
Eliv a Hornes (Grange Road) writed!
Shyviz mormes (Netey) Limitea®*
Fliv-a Somes (Southern) mireg*!
Elrva —ornes (Surbiton: onreatt

Elva ~armres - rmited’”

Lyla Morth Lirsite

m

Elvia Orxfora Limited™”

Lmtedt

N
O
C
=
)

Ft TR
tilvla

e

Country of
:ncorporatlon

Franceh h
France
France
France
France
France
France
UK
France
UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
LUK

UK

UK

UK

UK

Class of
shares

<arrensa

Ord\nary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Crdinary
Deferred
Prefererce

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Crdinary

Ordinary

Crdinary

Holding

B R T

100%
100%
100%
160%
i00%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
1007%

100%

100%

1G0%

100%

160%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal
activity

pepnn TR R 0 PR Y (P Ry, 7 % B

Fnergy generation
Energy genaration
Energy ageneration
Energy generation
Energy genarat:on
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Haclding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Construction of

domestic buildings

Financial services
holding companies

Construction of
domastic buldings

Construction of
domestic buidings

Construction of
domestic buildings
Developrnent of
building projects
Construction of
domestic buildings

Construction of
domestic bulldings

Developmerit of
bulding projects
Deveiopment of
building projects
Construction of
domestic buildings
Buying and seliing of
owrn real estate
Construction of
domestic buiidings
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Elivia Southern Lirntod'®
Elicompe Limited”™
Energy Power Resourcas Lirmites™

EPR By Limared™

EPR Eye Limited”

EPR Glanford Limuted™

EPR Renewable Energy Limites™
EPR Scotiand Lmited®”

PR Thetford Limiteg®

[l

Ecalyptus Energy Holdings Limited™

Eucalyptus Energy Cmitad”

Feltwell znergy Limitea™

rern Energy Cour Holdings L-mited™

Fern Eresgy Holdings Limited™

Fern Energy Limied™

Fern Erergy Wind Foldings bimeted™”

Fern Fibre Limited™

Fern Healthcare Hold:ngs Lirmited™
Ferm Infrastructure Limited™

Fern Rerewable Energy Limited”™
Ferm Rooftop Solar (A) Limited”

Fern Rooftop Solar (EBD)™

Fern Rooftop Solar (Zestec) Lirmited™”

Fern Trad ng Development Linrited™

Fern Trad ng Growp Limited

Fern UK Power Developrrents Umitert™

Fibrophos Limited™
Four Burrows Limited”

Fra.sthorpe W.nd Farm Limited™

UK

UK

UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

Country of Class of Principal
incorporation shares Holding activity
o - Const‘r:»gtion of
own real estate
Ordinary 160% Erergy generation
Energy project
Ordinary 100% if;f;;i:gigtt and
SErvICES
Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Ordinary 106% Erergy generation
Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Ordinary 100% Holding comipany
Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Crdinary 100% Holding company
Ordinary 100% Holding company
Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Ordinary 100% Holding company
Crdinary 100% Holding company
Crdinary 100% Holding company
Ordinary 100% Holding company
Crdinary 100% Holding company
Crrdinary 100% Holding company
Crdinary 100% Holding company
Ordinary 100% Holding company
Ordinary 1007% Energy generation
Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Ordinary 100% Haolding company
UK 100% Holding company
Ordinary 100% Holding company
Crdinary 100% Supply of fertiliser
Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Crdinary 100% Energy generation

UK




Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

Gartaff Enrergy Lirmitec®

Giganet Fibre Lid”

Giganet Limited”

Glerchamiper Wind Erergy Lumited
Grange Wind Farrn Limited™
Guardbrnide SP. z.o of

Harbourre Power Limited”

Hayrnaker (Mcunt Ml Lid”

Haymiaker (Natewoooh —oldings Limited™

Hayrnaker (Natewood: Lid™
Hayrmaker (Qakiards) Boldirgs Limited™
Haymaker {Oakiands) Lid™
Helm Power 2 Uimitec™
Helm Paower Limitec”
Higher Kragp Farm L'mited”
Hill Endd Farm Limited™
Hollarnoor Limrred™

Hull Reserve Power Lirmited™
Hursit S#v 1 Limited™
Irrmiingharr Power Limed™

Il Power Uraited™

Juarzesic mire Limited

Koin Power Lirnted™”

Larlgar Power riited”
Lenrarn Solar nmited”

Littie T Sclar umited”™
Littletor Solar Farm Lmited”™

Lt

L) Cormmidricanons Lid™

Loadnn Power o riied”

o g AU TOTVIRL i Y EER T R ¥ T TR

Country of

incorporation

UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK

Class of

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Qrdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Crdinary

Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

HoldingV activity

JREC T ——

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
i60%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
90%

90%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

Principal

Dormant company

Fibre network
producton

Fibre network
oroducton

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generaton
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy genaration
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy gereration
Energy generation
Energy generation
Frergy gereration
Energy generation
Energy gereration
Halding company

Fibre network
oroduction

Energy generation
Energy gererat:on
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Fibre network
producton

Energy generat:on

= sdaben.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

Lovedean Limuted™

Luminance Sotar Lirrsted ™
MLZ Sowhons Limited”™
Manrsiar Thorne Liried”
Marcn Energy Lirnited”
Marden Power Limited™
Marey Thatcn Solar Lirmited™
teadows Farm Limited™
tetbours Sclar Umited ™
Melton LG Snergy Limited™

Melton L5 Holging Limited*
Meiton LG ROC Limited™

Melton Renewable crergy (Scldmgs] Urmted™
Mellon Renewsble Energy Newco Limited”™
Meilton Renewabie zriergy UK Limited

R I P Somar Limited™

Mingay Fasr Holding Limnited™

PSP Cecoy Ltd”

MSP Strete Ltd™

MSP Tregasscw Limitad”

MTS Matchlands Solar Lrd™
Nevern Bower Lirmites™

Neve Row Farm dimited®”
MNewands Solar Limited™

Ninnis Farm Limited™

MNorth Ferrott Fruit Farm Lirmited™
Northwizh Power Liried”
Motes Energy Limited”™

Cgmore Power Limited™

Gldhall Energy Recovery Holdings Limited™

Orie Ashforg Healthcare Limited

One Hatfela Hospital Limited

RS RS B RSTE R Haak

Country of Class of
wultlilvcorporation shares Hokiiilgd
‘ QK Ordinary 100‘;/“

UK Ordinary 100%

UK Crdinary 100%

UK Crdinary 100%

UK Ordinary 100%

UK Ordinary 100%

UK Crdinary 100%

UK Ordinary 100%

UK Ordinary 100%

UK Ordinary 100%

ux Crdinary 100%

Ux Ordinary 160%

UK QOrdinary 100%

UK Crdinary 100%

UK Crdinary 100%

UK Ordinary 100%

UK Crdinary 100%

UK Ordinary 100%

UK Crdinary 100%

UK Qrdinary 100%

K Qrdinary 100%

UK Ordinary 100%

LK Ordinary 100%

UK Ordinary 100%

LK Ordinary 106%

UK Ordinary 100%

UK Ordinary 100%

UK Ordinary 100%

IJK Ordinary 100%

UK Ordinary 100%

UK Ordinary 89%

UK Ordinary 90%

Principat
Activity .
‘ Energy generation

Energy generation

Holding company

Energy generation

tnergy generation

Energy generation

Energy generation

Energy generation

Erergy generation

Holding company

Holding company

Asset leasing
company

Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Eriergy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company

Provision of
heaithcare services

Provision of
healthcare services

B P R E R

s
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Ong Healthcare Partners Lirasteg
Crta Weogehll Selar Holdimgs Lirniied™
rt3 Weogehilt Sotar Lireed™

Palfreys Barton Lirmited””

Parciau Holdings Lmited”

Parciau Lirmtes”
Park Braacband ormned”

Paarmat Solar 2 Ltd”

Pitchford Condoy
Limited”

Stookbatch]

Pitts Fanm Lurited™
Porthos Salar Limmited”
Pyme Lane Sclar Ld™

Ciaeens g Roaa Erergy Lirnited™”

geford Care Limitag™

Rangeford RAP Liried
Rangeord Retrernent Liv ng Foldings Lig™
Fargetord Srasle®ord Lmied”

Country of

UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
LK
UK

UK

UK

UK

UK
UK
UK

UK

UK
UK
UK

UK
UK
UK
France

UK

LK

incorporation

LR L veeaa Peee e 8RR sesn SR rx e s, Yot O e

Class of
shares

% S

Ordinary
Qrdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinagry
Orchinary
Qrdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Oroinary
Ordinary
COrdinary

Ordinary

QOrdinary

Ordinary

Holdmg actwlty

B5%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%

100%

160%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Principal

Holding c;moan/
Holaing company
Energy generation
Energy generatcn
Halding company
Energy generation

Fibre network
producton

Ernergy gerération
Energy generation

Energy generaticn
Holding company
Energy gereration
Energy generation

Care seryices for a
retirement vilage

Retrement village
developrnent

Retirement village
development

Retirernent village
development

Holding company

R

etirement village
deve

loprnent

Retirement village
develocpment

Helding company

Retrement village
deveiopment

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy gereration
Energy gereration

Fiore network
proguction

B TP T
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
N i incorporation shares Holding activity o
Singrug Maldgngs Limited™” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
SINgrug Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Six Hels Lane tRagdawe) Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Skelorooke Energy Limiied™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Slaughtergate Limited” LIK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Snetierton Renewable Power Fuels uimited™ UK Ordinary 100% ?:flp]y of biomass
Snettertan Renswable Power Holdings Uimited™ UK Ordinary 1G0% Holding company
Snetterton Renewable Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 106% Energy aeneration
Soiarh LPO& SARL France Ordinary 10C% Energy generation
Sorarf SPOT SARCS France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Solarfi SPG2 SARL® France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Solarfi SP04 SARL? France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Selarfl SPOS SARLS France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Sotarh SPOS SARLS France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Solarfi SP10 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Southcombe Farm Limited™ UK Cirdinary 100% Energy generation
St Asaph Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Steadfast Farknouse Solar Limited™ UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Sreadfast Rudge Solar ttd™ Uk Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Sweadfast Shopton Belinger Solar Limiteg™ LUK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Stellar Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Storeyhill Erergy Lirnited® UK Ordinary 106% Dormant campany
Subs Energy Limited™ Uk Ordinary 100% Holding company
Summerston Energy Lirniteg?” UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Sunley Crayferr Lavant LLP™ UK NA 50% NA
Swash Fiore Contracting Limited?® UK Ordinary 100% ;irt;rsuncat;\’fqork
Swisk Fiore Limiteg” UK Ordinary 80% Holding comparny
Swish Fiore Networks Lic? UK Orgirary  100% giggu’lfmork
Swish Fiore Services Lirnited® UK Ordinary 850% ;trt;rgurl?tg\;ork
Swish Fibre Yorkshire? UK Crdinary 100% Fibre network

production

Swish Trading Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 80% Holding company
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

e R

TGO Selar 122 um ted”

TGO Sclar 83 Umied™

ne Fern Power Company Lirmitea”
Tne dslies Salar Farm Lirmmed”
noresby Estate (Budby) Lnmined™
Tllingham Power Liritea’

fodnilis Energy mited”

-
Tr

racown Farm Lrread’
Turves Sclar Limstea”

UKSE 15 solar Limnted”
United Mires Energy Liritea™
WISE LT

Victona Solar Lirmited™”

Viners Energy Lmiten

Vi Lmited”

Voltafranice 01 SARL®

vorboss LS Inc?

Wadswick Greer Limited™

WASm s e Sy ety A ol e me
WaSSAICK arear Properly HeEnVIZeT Limied

Wateroo Solar Park Lmrted™

Week Farm 2 Limitea”

o

Westwood Power omites’

Westwood Soar Limiteg”™

e FrRan THaan T e HEec Lmirew When® “eas, 00

Country of

incorporation

B, 00

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

LUK

France
France
France
France

UK

USA

UK

UK

UK

Class of

shares

Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Crdinary 100%
Grdinary 160%
Crdinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Qrdinary 100%
Crdinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Orchinary 1G0%
Ordinary 100%
Crdinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Crdinary 100%
Ordinary 160%
Ordinary 100%
QOrdinary 100%
Crdinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%

activity

Principal

Energy generat\c:r%
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Halding cormpany
Energy generaton
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy gereration
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Holding company

Fibre network
producton

Energy generalion
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Fibre network
groduction

Retirerment village
cperator

Service charge
aammimistrator

Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy gereration
Energy generation

Energy generaton

Fean T
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
e s i e iCOFPOTation  shares  Holding activity o
;;Vethe'derl “nergy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation ‘ }
Wharf Power Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
whiddon Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Whinney Hill Erergy Lircited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Wincels Soiar Holdings Limited” UK Qrdinary 100% Holdmag company
Walverhampton Power Ltd™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wryde Croft Wind Farm Lirrsted®” UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
WSE Bradford Limited™ UK Qrdinary 100% Erergy generation
WSE Hullavington Hoidings Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
WSE Hullavington Limited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
W52 Park wall Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Pyde Drove Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Zestec Assel Managernent Limdted” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Acquired after year end Date
Fern Roofiop Solar (BRD) Lirted . 09/08/2022
Cuckoo Internet Ltd 31/08/2022
Y trfi Dig.tal Limuted 1240712022
40f Limited 2211172022

Subsidiaries exermpt from audit by virtue of 34804 of the Companies Act 2006

]
“Subsidianes exempt from audit by vrtue of s473A of tno Companes Act 2006
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Dnssolved or sold durmg the  year and up untnl sngmng

Pc rneun Hﬂtomos Lirrs ed
Ridge Wird Acguis ton Limeed
Ferr Energy RicgeWird Acquisitions Lirnted
Fern Energy RicgeWind Holaings Limiten
Fern Energy “arinesships Hold'ngs Lirnted
Fraistrorpe (=olding; Lirmited

DY Cidhait Energy Recovery Lirited
Cormm?2i Ld

Carlingten Poeint Holaco Pty Cirmied
Dariington Peint Solar Farrm Pty Limited
Darlirgton Pont Subnowdes Py Limited

Nordie Sowear Daeveloprent Limited
Yoyrmkangas Wind Farm Gy

Saunamas Wird rarm Oy

O PP USRS TIPSV

Date

‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ S A BB E B AR b

20/“7/2041
20/07/2021
14/05/2021
21/08/2021
21/09/2021
25/03/2022
13/09/2022
15/0G/2022
08/07/2022
0870772022
C8/07/2022
2311272021
2311272621
23/12/2021
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5 APPENDIX — SHARE PRICF PFREORMANCE INALIDITED)

Fern’'s share price has performed in line with targets

Fern Trading Lirmited 1s an untsted company. Every rmontk, oudr Board of Directors agrees a price at which it

wil be willing to 1ssue new shares. The share price 1s unaudied,

The figures beiow include the share price of tne previous parent Inow Fern Trading Group Limited) as well

as this entizy

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited

15
13
17
16

15 s
14 M“MWWM

13 WWWM‘”’M«
12 et

11

1.0

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Perforreance 13 caiculated based on the sale price for -ern's shares at 2 June each year. The share price s

not subject 1o audit by Ernst & Yourg _F

Arnnual discrele performance

2020

2021

Financial Year Discrete share price performance
June 202:-22 R | 9.91%

Sune 2020-21 4.87%

June 2619-20 0.33%

June 2C18-19 6.23%

June 20:7-15 L05%
Juﬁ@ éﬂi&lf | 554%

June 2L‘516 3.83%

Sune 2014-15 “ 3.98%

June 2013-14 3.72%

June 2012-13 3.97%

June 201:-12 1.02%

Source Getopus Investrments L mimed, 2 sune 2022
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FORMATION

Directors and advisers

Diractors
PS Latharm
K Willey

PG Barlow

Hegistered offics

wor, 22 -lcloorn,

-
F
Londaon, Englard BCIN 2H

T Artaur tappointed 1 July 2022 i independent auditors
Zrnst & Young LoP
Company searetary { sediord douse.
Octopus Comnany Secretanal Servieas L miled {16 Pediord Sireet
P oBedast BT2 7D
Company number
12601636 :
Forward-looking statements
This Annuai Report corta ns cortain forward-looxing saemenis 6 s Sl om s future Dousross

and financa performance and future events © >l on tre current

uncerta ntigs some

u
[«
-

knowlecae and excectatons

YO AsLuUnLuons,

of which are related to faclors that are ceyond the corvol of the Cormpany. Accoraingly. n

e given that any paracular exaectation witl b\: met and forward-tooking statemeants «egarding past rercs or

activites shouwd Nnot pe aken as & represenianor t7at such trends or actvities will continue in the futare Past
perform - be relied o as a guede o future performance. Net~ ng n tris Anaual Report shoud be

anfe
consirued as a oroft forecast




